
1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

Call to order. 

Roll Call. 

AGENDA 

Administrative Services Committee 

Tuesday, April 12, 2016 - 5:00 pm 

Health & Human Services Center - Community Room 

303 W. Chapel Street 

Dodgeville, Wisconsin 

For information regarding access for the disabled please call 935-0399. 
Any subject on this agenda may become an action item. 

Approve the agenda for this April 12, 2016 meeting. 

Approve the minutes of the March 21 ,  2016 meeting. 

Iowa 
County 

Wisconsin 

Report from committee members and an opportunity for members of the audience to address the 
committee. No action will be taken. 

April 2016 Employment Activity Report: 

• Social Services Social Worker -References completed. 
• Highway Auxiliary Maintenance Patrol - 9 applications received. 
• HWY LTE (4) - 12 applications received. 
• Economic Support Manager -Recruitment started April 6. 
• Substitute Bus Driver - Ongoing recruitment. 
• Dispatcher/Correctional Officer (FT and PT On-Call) -Background investigation started. 
• Bloomfield Healthcare PRN & FT/PT CNA--ongoing recruitment. 
• Bloomfield Healthcare Registered Nurse --0ngoing recruitment. 
• Bloomfield Laundry/Housekeeping -ongoing recruitment. 

Consider revising the Social Worker On Call Work Rule. 

Financing of Highway Equipment. 

Resolution Recommending Budget Amendments for 2016 Transfer of Funds from the Contingency Fund 
to Corporation Counsel for Outside Legal Counsel Expense. 

10 Resolution Transferring Funds Within Land Conservation Expenditure Accounts for the Purchase of 
Software. 

11 Resolution Reporting the Carryover Amounts from 201 5  to 2016. 

12 Resolution Recommending 2015 Budget Amendments for Various Departments. 

13 
Resolution Recommending Transfer of Funds from the Iowa County General Fund to Cover 
Expenditures in Excess of Budget for 2015: 

Resolution Recommending Transfer of Funds from the Iowa County Capital Projects Fund to Cover 
14 

Expenditures in Excess of Budget for 2015. 



15 
Resolution Recommending Transfer from the Contingency Account to Cover Expenditures in Excess of 
Budget for 2015. 

16 Iowa County Employee Handbook. 

Motion to convene in closed session pursuant to section 19.85(l )(e) Deliberating or negotiating the 

17 
purchasing of public properties, the investing of public funds, or conducting other specified public 
business, whenever competitive or bargaining reasons require a closed session. (Update on the Sheriffs 
Department union negotiations.) 

18 Motion to return to open session. 

19 Possible action on closed session item. 

Motion to convene in closed session pursuant to section 19.85(l )(c) Considering employment, 
20 promotion, compensation or performance evaluation data of any public employee over which the 

governmental body has jurisdiction or exercises responsibility. (Corporation Counsel compensation) 

21 Motion to return to open session. 

22 Possible action on closed session item. 

23 Set date and time for next meeting. 

24 Adjournment. 

Posting verified by the County Clerk's Office: Date: 417/16 Initials: GK 



1 

2 

3 

DRAFT Minutes of the 

Administrative Services Committee 

Monday, March 21, 2016 - 5:00 pm 

Health & Human Services Center - Room 1001 

303 w. Chapel Street 

Dodgeville, Wisconsin 

Meeting was called to order by Chair Carol Anderson at 5:00 p.m. 

Roll Call. Members present: Sups. Carol Anderson, Ron Benish, Tom De 
Parman and Curt Peterson. 
Excused/Absent: Excused: John Meyers, Dave Gollon, & James r.r.iiffrfh 
Others Attending: Larry Bierke and Roxie Hamilton 

Motion by Sup. Benish second by Sup. Lindholm to appro " 
meeting. Motion Carried. 

Motion Sup. DeLain second by Sup. Parman to app · 

Iowa 
County 

Wisconsin 

•ill"6 meeting. 
4 Motion Carried. 

5 

6 

7 

8 

Report from committee members and an Of! 
committee. No action will be taken. 
Sup Anderson stated the reason for the meet! . . .,;,,, i§pussing tli dget transfer with Larry Bierke 
last Monday it was determined that �here was l\.� ti "o1Qg,�,�'s he me ting in ?rder for the committee to 
meet before the County Boar tmg last Tues d this · . .  lfy' the meetmg was scheduled for 
tonight. 

enish to adjourn at 5:10 p.m. Motion Carried. 



IOWA COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF SOCIAL SERVICES ON CALL WORK RULE 

Iowa County Department of Social Services employees who are on-call shall be furnished with a 
communication device and shall be required to remain within a 45-minute in-person response time to 
the Iowa County Sheriff's Department in Dodgeville while on-call and must respond within 10 
minutes by phone. In the event that extenuating circumstances (i.e., severe weather, car problems, 
etc.) make it not possible to respond within the allotted time period, notification to an appropriate 
Manager or the Director must be made. On-call assignments shall be rotated among eligible 
employees on a weekly basis. The Employer will make arrangements within the time limits required 
by law after hire for new employees to enroll in necessary training courses. 

Employees will be paid Two Hundred Dollars ($200.00) per week in addition to their regular salaries 
for every week they serve on-call. Employees who are called for work outside of their normal work 
hours while on-call shall be compensated in accordance with the County's Overtime or 
Compensatory policy. On-call employees called in to work on a holiday shall be paid time and one
half for each hour worked, plus holiday pay. 

ON CALL SCHEDULE: Excepting weeks which involve holidays, on-call assignments shall be 
scheduled on a rotating basis among all employees qualified for on-call work. The schedule for all 
employees will be developed at the beginning of each calendar year. A separate rotation will be 
established for on-call weeks which involve holidays. An employee who is on-call for the week 
including Christmas will not be required to be on-call for that week again until all other employees in 
the rotation have been scheduled on-call for the week of Christmas. An employee who is scheduled 
to be on-call for the week of Easter, Thanksgiving, or Christmas will not be required to be on-call for 
any other holiday week that year 



PROPOSED NEW 
IOWA COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF SOCIAL SERVICES ON CALL WORK RULE 

Iowa County Department of Social Services employees who are on-call shall be furnished with a 
communication device and shall be required to remain within a 45-minute in-person response time to 
the Iowa County Sheriffs Department in Dodgeville while on-call and must respond within 10 
minutes by phone. In the event that extenuating circumstances (i.e., severe weather, car problems, 
etc.) make it not possible to respond within the allotted time period, notification to an appropriate 
Manager or the Director must be made. On-call assignments shall be rotated among eligible 
Children and Family Unit employees. The Employer will make arrangements within the time limits 
required by law after hire for new employees to enroll in necessary training courses. 

On-call pay will be on a daily stipend basis. Weekdays (Monday thro.\L��'ll!y) will be paid at $24 
per day and weekend days & holidays will be paid at $40 per day .. Al-�§,�eduled weekend described 
below consists of 1 weekday plus 2 weekend days for reimbursei!Jte'lifP>f� ses. Timesheets will 
contain a column to identify on-call days worked .. Employees�o are Oli' . for work outside of 
their normal work hours while on-call shall be compensateckgfl;,j .5'.iltimes the mal hourly rate or 
compensatory time. On-call employees called in to wor

,,
�'lfa'h'bliday shall be · time and one-

half for each hour worked, plus holiday pay. ,if' 

ON CALL SCHEDULE: Based on seniority, Social�,,� will p�\@,.,_months of bei n-call. Four 
Social Workers will be on-call during the month. Holidays--Wffu.o.eJn a veluntary basi first and then 
assigned and you will automatically get that month in which YQ'l:/li.boliday falls. Holidays will be 
required of all staff on a rotating basis as 'N always the exp�tl[!Up. 

'Ii, Four social workers will be assigned per mo · · meet prior t ·,!��onth beginning. Each 
worker will have a list of preferred days (likely,, s . each wee�*unless otherwise adjusted) 
and again, based on seniority will pick the day.'\Social

(M
. · · tie" on-call one day per each week � /. ;;"" of the month (day is define��i;.¥,OPM through \�,f\ th_e 'W mg day, M?nday through 

Thursday) and one wee�r;ilJ•0flttM1tf!lonth (weeke_lj)£l 1s _defmed,as 4:30PM Friday through 8:00AM 
Monday morning). _Tr\l,Q!Rg and �[v Ji away of sh1ffs,1,_w1ll remain an option based on the mutual 
agreement of the g1'4er• · receive Yl:\ _9 1,�� @ j/" 



Information on the Proposed Short-Term Borrowing for Highway Department Equipment 

Proposed Short-Term Borrowing for Highway Department Equipment 

>- The Highway Department has an aging fleet of equipment and the cost to 

replace the fleet is estimated to cost $6,410,000. 

>- At the April 4, 2016 Transportation Committee a recommendation was 

made to borrowing $600,000 each year for the next three years with paying 

the $600,000 note off each year. 

>- The County can issue short-term debt for capital purchases -through a 

bank, promissory note or state trust fund loan (a term of 6 months up to a 

year). 

>- The issuance of short-term debt for capital purchases will not have a 

negative impact to the County's bond rating. 

>- The County would have to authorize the $600,000 each year. 

>- The County could authorize and borrow $1.8 million with using $600,000 
the first year and pay it back the next year and spend the second $600,000 
in the second year, pay it back in the third and spend the remaining 

$600,000 the third year and pay it back in the 4th year. 

>- There are costs associated with the promissory note and possibly the bank 

loan. There are no cost associated with the state trust fund loan 

>- Highway equipment would qualify as a capital purchase. 

>- The debt payments on the short-term debt would qualify as debt levy and 

would be outside the operating levy limits. 

Prepared by Roxie Hamilton, Finance Director 3/29/2016 

With edits Craig Hardy, Highway Commissioner 03/30/2016 

Updated by Roxie Hamilton, Finance Director 4/7 /2016 



Information on the Proposed Short-Term Borrowing for Highway Department Equipment 

> For the first year the estimated annual cost per $100,000 equalized 

valuation on the additional debt levy of $600,000 plus interest is $67 per 

year. This would change with the increase/decrease of equalized valuation. 

> The borrowing would have to be approved by the County Board as required 

per Wisconsin statutes and per the loan agreement. 

> If funds are borrowed in 2016 the first debt payment would be in 2017 and 

the debt payment amount would be included in the County's 2017 debt 

levy budget. 

> If funds are borrowed through the state trust fund loan program after 

September 1, 2016 the first scheduled payment would not occur until 

March 2018. If before September 1, 2016 the payment would be March 

2017. 

> Recommend the purchase of additional equipment be part of the overall 

Capital Improvement Plan for the County. 

> Recommend the County's financial advisor firm review loan proposals or 

documents before finalizing. 

Prepared by Roxie Hamilton, Finance Director 3/29/2016 

With edits Craig Hardy, Highway Commissioner 03/30/2016 

Updated by Roxie Hamilton, Finance Director 4/7 /2016 



Information on the Proposed Short-Term Borrowing for Highway Department Equipment 

;;.. Authorization of Bonds 

• County General Obligation Bonds can be issued by the following: 

o Bonds or notes are approved by referendum 

o Debt is issued for regional projects 

o Debt is issued to refund existing debt 

o Resolution authorizing the debt is approved by a vote of% 

of the members-elect of the Board 

• Two applicable methods of authorization for Iowa County are 

o Voter referendum 

o % vote by the Board of Supervisors 

;;.. County can place borrowing on the ballot in the form of a binding 

referendum. A simple majority of the votes cast is needed to approve. 

o Adopt an initial Resolution in the standard form 

o State the amount and purpose of the proposed borrowing 

o Adopt a Referendum Resolution calling for 
• A specific referendum date 
• Providing for referendum notices 
• Covering other procedural matters. 

;;.. County can pass borrowing via a %'s vote of the members-elect of the 

Board. 

o A% vote of the members-elect of the Board requires a% affirmative 

vote of the members. 

o Based on Iowa County's 21 member Board of Supervisors, there 

would need to be 16 yes votes to pass the borrowing. 

Prepared by Roxie Hamilton, Finance Director 3/29/2016 

With edits Craig Hardy, Highway Commissioner 03/30/2016 

Updated by Roxie Hamilton, Finance Director 4/7 /2016 



Iowa County, Wisconsin 
financing Options for Highway Equipment 

$1,830,000 General Obligation Promissory Notes, Series 2016 

17 

Date 
9/1/2016 
3/1/2017 
9/1/2017 
3/1/2018 
9/1/2018 
3/1/2019 

1.00% 
Principal Interest 

605,000 3,025 

-Ji,. , 5 t.> ().. "'-'-11.. Dr heJ 
),, "l --/1-Q_ 15 () c.... ..-4 

Investment Amount 600,000 
Rate 1.05% 

1.20% C.D. 
Principal Interest Earnings 

3,660 (3,150) 
3,660 (3,150) 

610,000 3,660 

O"'Q 

bJ.,1-tL 

Investment Amount 
Rate 

1.40% 
Principal Interest 

4,305 
4,305 
4,305 
4,305 

615,000 4,305 

600,000 
1.20% 

C.D. 
Earnings I I Principal 

(3,600) 605,000 
(3,600) 
(3,600) 610,000 
(3,600) 

615,000 
1,830,000 

Interest 
Gross 
D.S. 

C.D. 
Earnings 

Net 
D.S. 

10,990 615,990 (6,750) 609,240 
7,96S 7,965 (6,750) l,21S 
7,965 617,965 (3,600) 614,36S 
4,305 4,305 (3,600) 705 
4,30S 619,305 619,305 

35,530 I , �,.a6s\53&: I (20, 700) I 1,844,830 I 
Average Rate: I 2.41%1 I 1.65%1 

Three STFls of $600,000 borrowed.J.prSeptember of one year and paid off on March 15 of the following year 

2.50% 2.50% C.D. 
Date 

9/1/2016 
3/15/2017 

Principal Interest Principal Interest Earnings 

600,000 8,014 

3/15/2018 600,000 8,014 

93/15/2019 -----

..,iV-r'l-..1.::; I s ti:. IA_ncr I�&-<- cc.cl., 
'1 <!-,�I'"' b L( 'f-N_ ,B,, <i<.....,d 

Public Financial Management, Inc. 

2.50% C.D. 
Principal Interest Earnings 

600,000 8,014 

C.D. 
Principal Interest 

Gross 
D.S. Earnings 

Net 
D.S. 

600,000 

600,000 

600,000 
1,800,000 

8,014 608,014 608,014 

8,014 608,014 608,014 

8,014 608,014 608,014 
24,041 I 1,824,041 I - I 1,8z4,o41 J 

Average Rate: I 2,!>0% I I' 2.50%1 

April 5, 2016 



� 

� 

Iowa County j ebt Pavments Schedule with Pronosed Borrow inn for Hinhwav Enuinment IOntion 

Below is a summary Progosed Le'!Y of 

$600,000.00 

Highwa� EguiQ
.
ment 

' 

i ' 

Levy of Additional 

PrinciQal 
Prine Bal 12/31/10 

Due in 2011 

Due in 2012 i. 
Due in 2013 

Due in 2014 

Due in 2015 i 
Due in 2016 

Due in 2017 $600,000.00 . 

Due in 2018 $600,000.00 

Due in 2019 $600,000.00 

Due in 2020 $600,000.00 I 
Due in 2021 $600,000.00 I 
Total I 3,000,000.00 

- ... 

Total PrinciQal & 
Interest Payments 

-

658,159.03 

805,190.52 

711,335.59 

715,069.92 

721,880.77 

726,324.26 

1,333,326.54 

1,299,537.28 

1,234,335.00 

1,235,295.00 

600,000.00 

9,440,453.91 

. · · -

Year End Balance 

of All Loans 

6,099,000.00 

5,620,428.00 

4,949,073.68 

4,361,157.67 

3, 760,974.62 

3,143,464.31 

2,508,576.05 

2,451,223.84 

1,810,000.00 

1,215,000.00 

600,000.00 

600,000.00 

Debt Levy Rate 

0.000400333 

0.000734898 

0.000716274 

0.000680336 

0.000680865 

0.000330706 

• 2012 - The County paid back an additional $100,000 on the principal of the State Trust Fund Loan 

I I I I 

Cost Per 
$100,000 of 

Equalized 

Value 

40.03 

73.49 

71.63 

68.03 

68.09 

33.07 

I 
Note: 2015 equalized valuation for 2016 budget is $1,814,301,600 and this is used in calculating debt levy rate for each year. 

r ( 

i 

I 
·i 
i 

Cost Per 
Change in $100,000 of Change in 
Levy from Equalized Levy from 

2016 Value Prior Year 

80.07 
' 

146.98 I 33.46 
' 

66.91 

31.59 143.25 1 63.19 

28.00 136.07, 56.00 

28.05. 136.17 j 56.11 

(6.96) 66.14 1 -13.93 
I i 
I ! 
i I 



I" 
Highway De(!artment Egui(!ment Backlog based solely on age of units 

I I I 

Quantity in # Fully 

Class I Description Service Depreciated 

fleet Pickups and Automobiles 

101 I Rear Drive or 4WO; 15�000# < I 9 7 
Various Autornobiles, vans, Commissioner1 and Patrol Vehicles G 5 

103 Rear Drive or 4WD; 15,001#< or< 17,9991t 6 6 

21 18 

Trucks - Specialty and Plow 

117 Tandem Rear Drive thru 49,999# 4 4 

106 Single Axle - Rear Drive or 4WD; 20,000# < thru < 491999# 8 7 

118 Tandem Rear Drive; 50,000# and more 12 7 

1118 Tri-axles - Tandem Rear Drive, 50,000# or more with tag axle - 14 9 

38 27 

Machinery I Equipment 

Various Constructlon Machinery 19 11 

various Agricultural Tractors 7 3 

various Construction Equipment 37 31 

Various Equipment/ Machinery Trailers 9 8 )various 

,.,,. Equipment - Accessories to Machinery 

l ,.;.. ; 
Agricultural Tractor Mowers I 15 I 7 

87 60 
"'"" =Recommend to Replace at Depredation Life 146 

Equipment-Accessories to Machinery 

1mend replacing this equipment when the machinery it belon,gs to is updated - T 

various Sanders and Spreaders 37 28 

various Right and/or Left Win� Plows 43 29 

various Front Vee Plows 6 3 

various Front Plows llFt and 12Ft 36 24 

370 151 

�� 

·� 

II 

Oldest"in Replacement Cost/ Cost of New 
Average Age Class in 2015 $ 

13 23 $ 50,000.00 
12 20 $ 35,0U0.00 
11 14 s 55,800.00 

22 30 $ 234,SUO.OO 
15 20 $ 150,0UO.QO 
12 27 $ 197,0UO.OO 
12 23 $ 205,000.00 

12 29 $ 205,000.00 
12 31 $ 82,SUO.OO 
23 63 $ 13,475.19 
22 45 $ 15,963.33 

I 9 I 18 I $ 11,0U0.00 

12 20 $ 5,000.00 
13 27 $ 8,600.00 
11 27 $ 12,500.00 
13 20 $ 9,500.00 

Replacement= 1.5 ... Depreciation 

Number of Units 
Recomn1ended for bt of Purchases for 

Replacement EXISTING Backlog 
·-· -··· -

7 s 350,000.00 
5 $ 175 ,000.00 
4 $ 223,200.00 

s 748,200.00 

4 $ 938,000.00 
5 s 750,000.00 
5 $ 985,000.00 
5 $ 1,025,000.00 

$ 3,698,000.00 

6 $ 1,230,000.00 
, .. $ 165,000.00 
27 $ 363,830.00 

8" $ 127,706.67 

7 .. $ 77,000.00 

$ 1,963,536.67 

$ 6,409,736.67 



Resolution No. 

Resolution Recommending Budget Amendments for 2016 
Transfer of Funds from the Contingency Fund to Corporation Counsel for Outside Legal Counsel 

Expense 

TO THE HONORABLE IOWA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS: 

WHEREAS, at the February 16, 2016 meeting, the County Board approved resolution 8-0216 Directing 
County Staff to Begin Research and Discussions with Upland Hills Health on Possible Collaboration on a 
New Nursing Home; and 

WHEREAS, the County Administrator was designated as the Chief Negotiator and was authorized to see 
professional assistance from specialized legal counsel, professional experts, accounting professionals, and all 
County Staff in an "as needed" basis to perform duties; and 

WHEREAS, the Administrative Services Committee recommends transferring funds from contingency 
funds to the Corporation Counsel budget to cover the cost of specialized legal counsel; and 

WHEREAS, the Administrative Services Committee recommends the following budget amendments: 

EXPENSE 
100.02.51410.00000.341 
Contingency Funds 

Amount of 
Decrease 
$25,000.00 

EXPENSE 
100.24.51320.00000.212 
Corporation Counsel- legal expense 

Amount of 
Increase 
$25,000.00 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Iowa County Board of Supervisors that: 
The County Board adopts the recommendations of the Administrative Services Committee, and approves the 
budget amendments of transferring $25,000.00 from the Contingency Funds to Corporation Counsel's 
budget as follows: 

EXPENSE 
100.02.51410.00000.341 
Contingency Funds 

Amount of 
Decrease 
$25,000.00 

EXPENSE 
100.24.51320.00000.212 
Corporation Counsel - legal expense 

Dated this 19tl' day of April, 2016 

Amount of 
Increase 
$25,000.00 

Respectfully submitted by the Iowa County Administrative Services Committee 



Resolution No. 

Resolution Recommending 2016 Budget Amendments for Land Conservation Department 

TO THE HONORABLE IOWA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS: 

WHEREAS, the Land Conservation had funds carried over from 2015 to 2016 for forestry funds and capital 

outlay; and 

WHEREAS, the Land Conservation department has research and found a software that will work assist in the 

farmland preservation certification program to streamline the process and make the process more efficient; 

and 

WHEREAS, the software will work with the existing property tax software; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT: 

The Iowa County Board of Supervisors adopts the recommendations of the Administrative Services Committee 

and approves the budget amendments of the following accounts. The Board further directs the County Clerk 

to publish this Resolution pursuant to Wisconsin State Statute number 65.90 (5) (a) for the statutory 

requirement. 

EXPENSE 

Land Conservation: 

100.84.56130.00000.203 

Software Expense 

Amount of 

Increase 

$ 15,000.00 

EXPENSE 

100.84.56125.00000.242 

Forestry-Tree Planter Repair 

100.84.56130.00000.805 

Capital Outlay 

Amount of 

(Decrease) 

($ 12,054.38) 

($ 2,945.62) 

Respectfully submitted by the Iowa County Administrative Services Committee 



RESOLUTION # ___ _ 

CARRYOVER OF CERTAIN ACCOUNTS 

WHEREAS, at the December 15, 2015 the Iowa County Board approved resolution 5-1215 Carryover of Certain 

Accounts; and 

WHEREAS, the use of certain revenues is l imited by externally enforceable constraints; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the following is a list of each carryover including the amounts to be carried 

forward to 2016: 

Department Carryover Purpose Amount 

County Board Contingency To cover future contingencies $ 637,562.24 

OWi Intensive OWi Intensive Supervision To offset future cost of the program 
Supervision Program $ 2,168.53 

Coroner Remaining 2015 Budget To cover future Coroner Office Expense $ 10,665.90 

Finance Department Capital Outlay - payroll To purchase software for on line payroll 
items $ 14.691.00 

Information Technology Remaining 2015 Budget Ongoing and future Information 
Technology Projects $ 87,771.72 

District Attorney Remaining 2015 Budget To offset the cost of a file cabinet purchase. $ 11,300.00 

Register of Deeds Remaining 2015 Budget for record Record preservation project 
preservation $ 3,287.85 

Public Property - Remaining 2015 Budget Ongoing Capital/Maintenance Projects 
Maintenance $ 259,687.19 
Sheriffs Department Remaining 2015 Budget for Housing prisoners out of county $ 33,350.00 

housing prisoners out of county 

Veterans Service Office Veterans Relief Supplement budget for assistance to needy 
veterans and dependents as provided in $ 6,696.80 
Wis. Ss. 45.81 

Emergency Management Remaining 2015 Budget Radio Equipment - replace equipment and 
equipment maintenance $ 811.32 

Land Conservation Forestry Funds Fees collected Purchase of replacement equipment $ 12,054.38 

Land Conservation Remaining 2015 budget from Potential purchase of Equipment/Truck for 
Capital Outlay the department $ 7,395.73 

Unified Related Services Balance of 2015 Budget and prior To offset the costs of the County's 
Carryovers responsibility of mental health related $ 89,279.50 

institutional care 

Social Services Remaining 2015 budget amount Cost of employee retiring from the County. 
for projected cost of employee $ 34,460.00 
retiring from the County 

Iowa County Airport - Remaining 2015 budget Future capital improvements and 
Operating unforeseen maintenance items. $ 42,640.52 

Sales Tax Fund Unspent Sales Tax Revenue Funds are carried forward to apply to the $2,402, 192.22 
following years budget 

Capital Projects Remaining budget current year Future Capital Projects 
and prior years $ 570,283.61 

Capital Projects Net Proceeds from the sales of Future Capital Projects to be determined 

real property $ 598, 726.67 

Capital Projects I Iowa Remaining 2015 Budget Future Airport related Capital Projects 
County Airport $ 42,893.69 

1 



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the following is a list of each carryover with externally restrictions including the 

amounts to be carried forward to 2016: 

Department Carryover Restriction Amount 

County Clerk Election Grant State/Federal Funds for the programming or purchases 
outside of normal election expenses $ 2,295.95 

Register of Deeds Remaining Redaction Redaction software that blocks out Social Security 

Fees collected but not numbers on documents. $ 20,136.S9 

yet spent 

Land Records I G\S Retained Fees - County Retained Fees qualified expenses per the County Land 

Land Record Fees Records Modernization Plan and Wis. Ss. 59.72(5)(b)3 $ 74,110.14 

Land Records I G\S Retained Fees - Land Records Modernization Plan and Wis. Ss. 
Computer Access. 59.72(5)(b)3 $ 88,568.23 

Land Records I G\S WLIP Grant WLIP grant agreement and Wis. Ss. 16.967 $ S,499.01 

Land Records I G\S WLIP Training Grant Qualified expenses per WLIP grant agreement and 
Wis. Ss. 16.967 $ 0.00 

Sheriff's Department Donations to the DARE Donations - DARE program related expenditures 

Program $ 175.14 

Sheriff's Department - Jail Assessment Statutorily restricted (Wis. Ss. 302.46(2)) Jail 

Capital Projects Fund Fees/Funds maintenance and improvements $ 79,083.67 

Public Health Bioterrorism Grant State/Federal Funds - related to preparedness in the 
Department event of a disaster or outbreak. $ 21,315.45 

Public Health Iowa County Safe Kids Grant funds - Purchase of child safety equipment, 

Department Grant community events and trainings, educational mater"rals $ 990.69 

Public Health Prescription Drug Qualified expenses related to drug drop off events 
Department Mcdic8tion Round-Up $ 329.65 

Grant 

Veterans Service Donations received Donations - Utilized at the discretion of the CVSO or as 
Office directed by the donor for expenses related to servicing $ 3,750.02 

the veterans 

Planning and Rezoning Conversion Qualified expenses related to the rezoning conversion 
Development Fees fees $ 4,507.54 

U.W. Extension Office Registration Fees for Qualified expenses related to the pesticide training 
Pesticide Training and and extension conferences 
Extension Conferences $ 16,175.62 

U.W. Extension Office DA TCP grant for the Expenses related to the Clean Sweep program 
Clean Sweep program $ 627.67 

U.W. Extension Office Corporate Grant from Farm Couple Programs 
the Kraft Trust $ 2,640.79 

Land Conservation Donations Conservation Youth Education programs $ 2,020.00 

Land Conservation CRP/CREP Fees Future Land Conservation Projects $ 0.00 

Social Services Donations Used for the purpose designated by the donor 
Department $ 7,408.55 

Social Services Restitution Paid to the claimant as per court order 

Department $ 0.00 

Aging and Disability Vehicle Trust DOT funds for 85.21 transportation services 
Resource Center $ 33,991.19 

Aging and Disability Other Donation Trust Donations used for the purpose designated by the 

Resource Center donor $ 45,292.90 

Recommended this 12th day of April, 2016 by the Administrative Services Committee of the Iowa County Board of 

Supervisors. 

2 



Resolution No. 
Resolution Recommending 2015 Budget Amendments for Various Departments 

TO THE HONORABLE IOWA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS: 

WHEREAS, the County Board approved the 2015 Iowa County Budget on November 12, 2014 and the budget 
adoption is considered a categorical authorization and Department Heads shall have the authority to expend or 
receive funds within their respective budgets without regard to specific line items but may not exceed 
appropriations within or transfer appropriations between the following categories without prior Administrative 
Services Committee approval: Revenue, Personnel, Operations and Capital Outlay. 

WHEREAS, the Administrative Services Committee realizes that budget amendments are necessary and these 
increase the revenue budgets and increase (decrease) the expenditure budgets for the accounts listed below for the 
year ending December 3 1 ,  2015; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT: 
The Iowa County Board of Supervisors adopts the recommendations of the Administrative Services Committee 
and approves the budget amendments of the following accounts. The Board further directs the County Clerk to 
publish this Resolution pursuant to Wisconsin State Statute number 65.90 (5) (a) for the statutory requirement. 

Amount of 
REVENUE Increase 
Restorative Justice Programs: 
100.03.435 14.00000.000 $40,853.74 
TAD Grant Revenue 

Coroner: 

Information Technology Department 

County Clerk: 

District Attorney: 

GIS Department: 

EXPENSE 

100.03.51273 .00000.xxx 
TAD Program Expense 

100.10.5 1270.00000. 1 1 1  
Cremation - Wages 
100.10.51270.00000.256 
Autopsies 

100. 15.5 1450.00000. 1 54 
Health and Dental Expense 
100.1 5.5 1450.00000.204 
Computer Hardware Expense 

100.22.51420.00000. 1 10 
Wage/Salary Expense 
100.22.5 1420.00000.3 1 1  
Postage 
100.22.5 1420.00000.325 
Convention/Seminars Expense 
100.22.51420.00000.332 
Travel/Mileage 

100.24.5 13 10.00000. 1 10 
Wage/Salary Expense 
100.24.51310.00000.273 
Court Costs 

100.3 1 . 5 1720.00000 . 1 10  
Wage/Salary Expense 

Amount of 
Increase (Decrease) 

$ 40,853.74 

$ 67.05 

($ 67.05) 

$ 437.50 

$( 437.50) 

$ 992.00 

$( 185 .00) 

$ ( 620.00) 

$( 187.00) 

$ 2,280.07 

$ ( 2,280.07) 

$ 223.63 



Resolution No. 
Resolution Recommending 2015 Budget Amendments for Various Departments 

Courthouse/County Owned Property: 

Sheriff's Department: 

EAP Grant: 
100. 7 4.43520.00000.000 
EAP Grant Revenue 

Planning & Development: 

$294,864.09 

Emergency Management Dept.: 
100.78 .43527.00000.000 $218,690.14 
DHS/OJA Grant Revenue 

Child Support: 
215.26.43561 .00000.000 $ 841 .24 
Reimbursement Revenue (Grant) 

Aging and Disability Resource Center: 
220.85.43250.25710.000 $ 19,975.07 

Capital Projects Fund: 
400.32.48300.00000.000 
Sale of County Property 

$ 696.60 

100.3 1.51720.00000.319  $ ( 223.63) 
Supplies 

100.34.5 1600.00000. 1 10 
Wage and Fringe 
100.34.51600.00000.208 
Maintenance Service Expense 

100.40.52710.00000.1 10 
Sheriffs Personnel Cost 
1 00.40.52710.00000.350 
Sheriffs Dept. Police Radio 

100.74.52500.00000. 710 
EAP Grant Expense 

100.75.56400.00000. 154 
P & D Health & Dental Ins 
100.7 5 .56400.00000.xxx 
P & D Operating Expense 

100. 78.52500.00000.342 
DHS/OJA Grant Expense 
Radio Equipment for Municipalities 

215 .26.54910.00000.805 
Capital Outlay - office remodel 

220.85.54600.xxxxx.1 l0 
Personnel Expense 
220.85.54600.xxxxx.xxx 
Operating Expenses 

400.32.57130.00000.83 1 
Sale of Property Expense 
400.32.57141 .00000.329 
Notices and Publications 

$ 42,622.84 

$ (42,622.84) 

$ (20,915 .57) 

$ 20,915 .57 

$294,864.09 

$ 8,884.66 

$( 8,884.66) 

$ 218,690.14 

$ 7,605.52 

$(22,543.35) 

$ 42,5 18 .42 

$ 460.00 

$ 236.60 

Dated this 12th day of April, 2016  
Respectfully submitted by the Iowa County Administrative Services Committee 



RESOLUTION NO. 
Resolution Recommending Transfer of Funds from the Iowa County General Fund to cover Expenditures in 

Excess of Budget for 2015 

TO THE HONORABLE IOWA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

WHEREAS, there was a department that exceeded the adopted budget for the year and funds will be transferred to 
that department to cover the excess expenditures, and; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT: the Administrative Services Committee does hereby 
recommend to the Iowa County Board of Supervisors a transfer of funds from the Iowa County General Fund to cover 
the Expenditures in Excess of Budget by Department in the following 2015 accounts: 

Iowa County Farm 
100.35.51620 
County Farm Maintenance/Operating 

Total Iowa County Farm 

TOTAL 

$ 6,003.10 

$ 6,003.10 

II$ 6,003.1011 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT: The Iowa County Board of Supervisors adopts the 
recommendations of the Administrative Services Committee and approves the transfer of funds from the General Fund 
to cover the expenditures in excess of budget by department. The Board further directs the County Clerk to publish 
this Resolution pursuant to Wisconsin State Statute number 65.90 (5)(a) for the statutory requirement. 

Dated this 12111 day of April, 2016  
Respectfully submitted by the Iowa County Administrative Services Committee 



RESOLUTION NO. 
Resolution Recommeudiug Transfer of Funds from the Iowa County Capital Projects Fund to cover 

Expenditures in Excess of Budget for 2015 

TO THE HONORABLE IOWA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

WHEREAS, there are cost centers in the Capital Projects Fund that exceeded the budget at the end of 2015 and funds 
are transfen-ed to those cost centers from fund balance, and; 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT, the Administrative Services Committee does hereby recommend to the 
Iowa County Board of Supervisors a transfer of funds from the Iowa County Capital Projects Fund to cover the · 

Expenditures in Excess of Budget by Department in the following 2015 accounts: 

Architect Fees - Courtroom Security 
400.32.57140.00000.822 

Interest on STFL 
IRS decreased reimbursement percentage 
400.32.58101.00000.620 

TOTAL 

$ 13,240.00 

$ 6.77 

1 3,246.7711 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT: The Iowa County Board of Supervisors adopts the 
recommendations of the Administrative Services Committee and approves the transfer of funds from the Capital 
Projects Fund balance to cover the expenditures in excess of budget as listed above. The Board further directs the 
County Clerk to publish this Resolution pursuant to Wisconsin State Statute number 65.90 (S)(a) for the statutory 
requirement: 

Dated this 12'11 day of April, 2016 
Respectfully submitted by the Iowa County Administrative Services Committee 



Resolution No. 

Resolution Recommending Budget Amendments for 2015 
Transfer of Funds from the Contingency Fund to Various Accounts 

TO THE HONORABLE IOWA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS: 

WHEREAS, the County Board has created a contingency fund to offset unexpected expenditures that occur 
throughout the year; and 

WHEREAS, the Administrative Services Committee recommends transferring funds from contingency 
funds to various depaitments to offset this unexpected expenditures; and 

WHEREAS, the Administrative Services Committee recommends the following budget ainendments: 

EXPENSE 
100.02.51410.00000.341 
Contingency Funds 

Amount of 
Decrease 
$ 5,81 8.24 

EXPENSE 
100.02.52220.00000.340 
Fire Suppression 

Amount of 
Increase 
$ 3,438.75 

100.78.52500.00000.329 $ 2,379.49 
Emergency Management Department 
Crisis Reality Training 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Iowa County Board of Supervisors that: 
The County Board adopts the recommendations of the Administrative Services Committee, and approves the 
budget amendments of transferring $5 ,81 8.24 from the Contingency Funds to County Boai·d -Fire 
Suppression account and Emergency Management - Preparedness and Outreach account as follows: 

EXPENSE 
100.02.5 1410.00000.341 
Contingency Funds 

Amount of 
Decrease 
$ 5,81 8.24 

EXPENSE 
100.02.52220.00000.340 
Fire Suppression 

100.78.52500.00000.329 

Amount of 
Increase 
$ 3,438.75 

$ 2,379.49 
Emergency Management Department 
Crisis Reality Training 

Dated this 121h day of April, 2016 
Respectfully submitted by the Iowa County Administrative Services Committee 



Iowa County 
Wisconsin 

Iowa County 
Employee Relations 

Revised 03/30/2016 



Dear Co{{eague: 

I wou{d fifie to take tfiis oyyortunity to we{come you to Iowa County. 

Iowa County is committed to _providing an environment tfiat is conducive to 
eYYl:Jlfoyee growtfi and deve{oyment, customer ser:;'ice, and yrofessiona{ism. 
]'or our va{ued eYYl:Jlfoyees, we strive to admiriJ,St�r our yoficies, as we{{ as our 
benefit and coYYl:Jlensation _programs, in a ''" ''gr tfiat is comyetitive, fair, 
and understandab[e. Tfiis Jfandbook i te t ·.· emmunicate terms and 
conditions of emyfoyment tfiat ayyli acfi of ��..:il"'e carry out our 
imyortant responsi6ifities at Iowa• ty. 'Tfie yoficte�i;·�.enefits, and services 
detai[ed fierein ref[ect a concern no o'!!J[Y for e we[{-fJe'iflJJ,but a[so for tfie 

_persona[ growtfi and deve{o)Jopient of aT1f.:• mhers of Id�(5J, County. 

)Vfii[e tfie Jfandhook yrovicfesii'fripfX/f(ant in ation re{ative to a[[ asyects of 
your emyfoyment at Iowa Coliftty, it'°&:i:tririot h · d as tfie basis for a[[ 

�:;;:;:� :::a�u:�,��:i::��� yo���·
�����  .our suyervisor(s) and tfie 

I extend to 

,._ -, -, , 

isfies,Jol.�uccess at Iowa County. 

Larry 'Bierke, CbUilJtY �ministrator 

Revised 03/30/2016 



Table of Contents 

Section I: Introduction 

I. I Policy Statement ... . ........ . . . .............. . ...................... . ....... . ....... ....... ............. . ........... . ....... . .. ........ ........ ! 

1.2 Equal Opportunity Employmenti Affirmative Action Policy ... . .. . ......... . ...... ...... . ...................................... . ....... I 

Section 2: Recrnitment and Separation 

2.1 Recrnitment. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . . .  2 

2.2 Internships.................. ............................. ..... ...................... . .......... . . .......................................... 3 

2.3 Nepotism/Fraternization...................................................... . . ......................................... ............... .3 

2.4 Orientation............................................ ................ , ,., ....................................................... 5 

2.5 Resignation.................................................. .. ........ ..................................... 6 

Section 3: Employment 

3. 1 Background Checks ............ .............................. .. " ............................. 7 

3.2 Fitness for Duty Exam .................. . 

3.3 Employee Classification Status ............ . 

3.4 Transfers and Pn>m<>trnns. 

3.5 Hire Date/Status DateloAnriivers:anl Date. 

3.6 Pay Periods ............. .. 

3.8 

. ........................ ................. ............. 8 

. ............. ............. ... ................. 8 

. ..................................................... 9 

,,,,,,,,,,,,, ................................................................ 9 

. ...................................................................... 9 

.............................................................................. 9 

.................. ......... . .............. . . . .............. . ...... . ................... 10 

3.10 Reduction ... " .. " ... " .... " . .  "." ...... " .. " ...... "." . . ...... "" ..... " .... " .......... "" .......... 10 

3 .11 Personnel Files . . . .  . .......... "" ..... " ... " .... " . . . . .  "."." ... .. ..  "." ...  " ..... " ... " ... """"""""" ...... 10 

lons .... .......................... ......... . . . . ....................................................... 10 

3.13 Discipline .............. . ...... . .......... . .... .... . .... ...... . . ...... . ............ . .. .. . ...... . . ...... . . . . ..... . . .... . ............ . ........ 11 

3.14 Grievance ............................................. ................................................................... ... ..... ........... 12 

Section 4: Employment Expectations 

4.1 Safety and Personal Protective Equipment ............................................................................................ ... 15 

4.2 Appearance and Demeanor. ........... . ....................... ... ................................ . ................ .............. .......... 16 

4.2a Shoe Allowance/Reimbursement. ...... ................................................................................................. 18 

Revised 03/30/2016 



4.3 Tardiness . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ..... 18 

4.4 Attendance and Absence . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ... . . . . ..... . . . . . . . .... . . . . ... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ... .... ... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  19 

4.5 Other Employment . . . ... . . . . . ... . . . . ... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ... . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ... . . . . . . . . ... . . . . . . . . . .... 20 

4.6 Photo Identification Badges .. . . . . . . . ... . . . . . ... . . . . . . . . . . . . . ... . . . . . . .... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ... . . . . . . . .. . . . . . ..... . . . . . . . .  20 

4.7 Workplace Smoking . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ... . ... ... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ..... . . . .. . ... . . . . . . ... . . . . . . . . . ... .... ... ... ... . . . . .  20 

4.8 Alcohol and Drngs . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . ... . . . . . . . . . . . . .... . . . . ... ... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .... . . . ..... ......... . . . . . .  21 

4.9 Return of County Property....................................................... . ..................................................... 22 

Section 5: Compensation 

; ................................ 33 

5.2 Temporary Wage Adjustment ......... . 

. ..................................................... 34 

................................................. 34 

..................................................... 35 

...................................................................... 38 

5. 7 overtime ................. , ......................................................................... 38 

5. 8 Compensatory Time .......... . , ....................................................................................... 39 

5.9 Expense R:i
'il�Jirse,ment. ........ . . ....... � . . . . . . . . . . . ... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ... . . . . .... . . . . . . . . . . . ... . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ... . . . . . .  M 

Section 6: Time at Work/Time Al')!,ay 
6.1 Hours ofWork ........... . . .................................................................................................... .41 

6.2 Lunch/Meal Period .. . . . . . . . ... . . . . .... . . . . ... . . . . . . . .. . . . ... . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . . .. . . ... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ... ... . . ... . .. . . . . . . . . . .  .42 

6.3 Managed Time Off(MTO) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .... . . . . . . . . . . . ... . . . . .. . . . . . . . . . ... . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . ... . . . . . . .. . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . .... . . . . . . . . .  .43 

6.4 Holidays . . . . . . . . . . . . ... . . . . . . ... . . . . . . . . . . ... . . .. . . . . . .. . . . ... . .. . . ... . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . ... ... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ... . . .. . ... . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. .49 

6.5 Jury Duty . . . . . . . . . . .... . . .... . ... . . . . .. . .. ... . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . ... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ... . . . ... . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . ..... . . . ... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  50 

6.6 Voting Leave . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ... . .. . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . ... . . . . . . .. . . . . . . .. . . . ... ... .. . . . . . . . ..... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ... . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  50 

6.7 Emergency/EMS Leave . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ... . . . . . . .. . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . ....... . . . . . . . . . . ..... 50 

Revised 03/30/2016 



6.8 Family and Medical Leave . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  52 

6.9 Military Leave . ... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ... . . . . . .  52 

6.10 General/Personal Leave . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  52 

6.11 Suspension of Operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  53 

6.12 Employee Loss and Damage Policy . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 53 

Section 7: Benefits 

7.1 Wisconsin Retirement................ .................. . . ............ ...... . . . .. . ..................................................... 53 

7.7 Disability Insurance ............ . . . .... . .  . 

. ..................................................... 57 

......................................................... 57 

7 .10 Flexible Spending ....................................................... 57 

..................................................................... 58 

......................................................................... 59 

................... . . ........................ ........................................... 59 

7.15 Workers Cofopensation .......... . .................................................................................................. 59 

Section 8: Workplace Policies·. 

8.2 Respect in the Workplace . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  6 1  

8.3 Weapons in the Workplace . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  62 

8.4 Workplace Violence . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . . . .  63 

Addendum Statement.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  A 

Highway Department Addendum . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  1-1 

Bloomfield Healthcare Addendum . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . . . .  2-l 

Revised 03/30/2016 



SECTION 1 :  INTRODUCTION 

1.1 Policy Statement 

This Employee Handbook is not a contract of employment; the Handbook supersedes and 
replaces those provisions previously found in collective bargaining agreements that have 
expired; this Handbook supersedes and replaces all previous personnel policies and procedures 
on issues that are addressed in this Handbook. This Handbook applies to all non-represented 
employees. 

Nothing contained in this Handbook shall imply, either im. · 
· 

Handbook is a contract between employer and employ 
employment or job tenure. 

Employment at Will: Iowa County is an "at-wjl@�lfi;loyer. 

or explicitly, that this 

out notice, with or 
ployees 

County are free to end the employment relati6n�fiip at any time, with o 
without cause and that your employment is not t'61ff�\§pecifieJ!fP�riod of tim 
wishing to resign in good standing to th'ci7Fe�!gn�tf�ffpolicy in Sectr 

,;cc-;:;,-"---- ;;0.:-""C: cc;-�";�; 
this Haridh�bk Manual with or without notice. 

Iowa County provide's'J'\fl_tig1 Empl��)nent Op;t[,ies to all qualified employees and 
applicants foi,; "J?.1J"lloyment2;lo\¥if��lll1ty \¥ill pr&�lll" equal employment opportunity to 
qualified �ifdi)filf{fijs rngardlei$gfi�2e: °Colgt,. r,;ligf��>' gender, sexual orientation, gender 
identit)f,u,ational ori�ll, i\g�, di�ability, gen�ti2I\i{o�ation, marital status, pregnancy, 
membersUi):l jn the milit���F�.§,�rve, ot�t<Itus as a "covered veteran in accordance with applicable 
federal, st�te!l}.11,<1 equal empl6"y' ent op°piJX'!µnity laws and guidelines. 

-;�----

This policy appfi'eit;}g all terms 
following: ···¥,!.· 

conditions of employment including, but not limited to, the 

• acement, promotion, transfer or demotion; 
• Recrnitment and selection; 
• Compensation for employment; 
• Conditions of employment; 
• Leave of absence; 
• Training; and 
• Involuntary layoff or terminations 

1 

Revised 03/30/2016 

Employment Handbook 



It is the policy of Iowa County to employ individuals who are qualified for specific work by job
related standards such as experience, demonstrated knowledge and skill, and demonstrated 
attitude and ability. 

SECTION 2: EMPLOYMENT 

2.1 Recruitment 

This policy applies to all newly created or vacant positions a · 

posted internally and externally except for department re 
changes. Those will be handled internally. ' 

a County. Positions will be 
· g and/or vacancies due to shift 

I. MEDIA 

In almost all cases, the following media outlets'• 

•!• Iowa County web site •• . 

•!• Bloomfield Healthcare employrrie11�9pportuniti 
Employment section of the catiuty ��b site, and a· 

•!• State of Wisconsin Job Service iXreh site :. ·  
•!• Local News Puglie��il'>ns; Shoppin�News �d'lJQdgcvill 
•!• University of�iti�6ii�fii�!"l11.tteville'site ,,,;{'];' • ':':: 
•!• Southwest T�d � · al Colf�g�:web site · •'''•'' . 

···• ' 
•·"· z:;:;}hc 

In addition to the. above lo · 
vacanciescaiJaif��ori¥nended · 

EmployeeiRelations ;;• . . . 

owing $il1:fpe utilized for management or professional 
ffic ill 'O:sition unless an exception is approved by 

•!• MdnsfeI Search - usi%g:South ��l:�orkforce Development Board 
•!• AccessBubuque.com an'q/or Madison.com web sites 
•!• WisconsiriSt

.
ate Journal. llll.9/or Dubuque Telegraph Herald newspapers 

•!• Craigslist - Madison and Dubuque Markets 
•!• Web sites direcilyrj:lioiieaiio open vacancy 

All positions shall be posted and/or advertised for a minimum of two weeks prior to the first 
review or deadline unless an exception is approved by Employee Relations. 

II. JOB ANNOUNCEMENT CONTENT 

All job announcements point to detailed benefit summaries and detailed job descriptions posted 
on the Iowa County website. 

2 
Revised 03/30/2016 

Employment Handbook 



Job notices shall announce "First Review Scheduled . . .  open until filled", unless approved by 
Employee Relations. 

III. APPLICATION RECEIPT AND DISTRIBTUION 

With the exception of Bloomfield Healthcme job openings, all Iowa County employment 
applications shall be submitted to Employee Relations. 

Applications are required for all posted vacancies, and aTe not used for other recmitments, unless 
noted otherwise in the job announcement. 

Employment applications for Bloomfield Healthcme open\fi�$'i�ll be forwmded directly to 
Bloomfield Healthcme. For management vacancies, B!()'.Bilifl�Jcl;J;-[ealthcare will forwmd copies 
of all applications received to Employee Relations c;':'.!'/ -�:::���:\�:\ 
When an applicant accepts a job offer for a Bl' 
his/her employment application are forwarded 

reld Healthcare p.oslfio11, original copies of 
ployee Relations andj'iled in the new 

employee's permanent file. 

2.2 Internships 
Iowa County allows t�l): ()pjj()tlifuity for Departme11ts�oJeJ1!iplpy infe1ifis for academic purposes 
only. All intemship�jf{fsi: be �PP��J::ed by th�.()':o�fltY A<lrllinistpator and will follow Iowa 
County's recruitment PQ!i9Y· "/;� :;•.�. 

-:�''0"'£> ,;:;;_�::::JZ<>:n '::;-;;M� 
Intemships ma)'.bepaid or un]l.ai&fifthe'dl'.s1>rstiori'l)Jthe Department. Both paid and unpaid 
internships must be related to ri;s nt's rri�Jo�c.fil;).�r()f study or career focus. ' i > , .. J�., . • 
2.3 Nepotis� �lld Fraterniz:tlh'n 

-:\:::f{if!ffl 

Iowa County recogh{zes that inp)'der to fulfill its mission of efficiently and effectively serving 
the public interest, theCOllpty',�c�mployees must be free from both perceived and actual conflicts 
of interest. In particular, C'ef!�\ri.'personal and business relationships between County employees 
may jeopardize public trust in the County, and negatively impact the County's operations. 
Compliance with this policy is intended to prevent the perception of favoritism among 
employees and promote a harassment-free working environment 

It is the policy of the County to restrict the employment of employees whose decision making 
involves close relatives, employees dating, or otherwise involved in an intimate relationship 
within the same department, shift and/or work unit. 

3 

Revised 03/30/2016 

Employment Handbook 



Definitions: 

1 .  "Inunediate Family" For the exclusive purpose of the Nepotism & Fraternization Policy, 
the term "immediate family" is defined as an employee's spouse, mother, father, guardian, 
son, daughter, brother, sister, grandchild, and grandparent, as well as the various 
combinations of half, step, in-law, and adopted relationships that can be derived from the 
family members named herein. 

2. "Intimate Relationship" The term "intimate relationship5lli defined as an 
employee's spouse, live-in companion, fiancee, or a J".'«1tfcouple. 

3. "Dating" is one or more social meetings under ,;��that may lead to the 
exchange of personal affection, romantis1 5!ttloffonal attachin�:: 
intimacy. 

Rules of Conduct: 

1. No member of an inunediate 
malcing or serve as decision-m� 
or an intimate relatipnship, unles 
Administrator. 

'':tintimate re1ati!:'ll1ship shall be involved in decision '()if°'' g anotheri!ffi.ember of the inunediate family 
'tten 1 is rec�{}ti;:d from the County 

;'-

-
; 
_

_ -,>-; ; _,-- £,;::\)_ 
'., 

-- --- � 

2. When evaluatingatequestf/lr approval, ·  
work , shift;�h() depl1Rm�nti.n whi' e individual would work, the number 
o(£v \la1ified.ap!)lI9ants, and.;wll.eth . rmal recruitment and selection 

�;pttf'c'edures ha��·;b�()!J follbWed, to en;�that all applicants have had an equal 
()�1.Jr. nity to apply;i,f() the p6�ition. Finally, the County Administrator may 

,und bl.lsil),()ss practice to have members of an inunediate 
t,jmate relati • •  ,.hip serve as decision-makers concerning another 

member oftlf�immediat�'[!lmily or an intimate relationship, and whether or not 
reasonable m;[s"' es c · '•§� taken to alleviate any problems or appearance of 
impropriety. 

3 .  Due to the nature of their respective responsibilities with all Iowa County 
departments' operations, the Finance Director's and Employee Relations Director's 
immediate family members and persons with whom they have an intimate 
relationship are prohibited from being employed by Iowa County. 

4 

Revised 03/30/2016 

Employment Handbook 



4. In the event a relationship develops between a manager or supervisor and an 
employee under their supervision, the management employee is responsible for 
bringing the matter to the attention of their immediate supervisor. 

5 .  In the event a relationship develops between employees in  a department, shift, 
and/or work unit, it is the responsibility of those employees to bring the matter to 
the attention of their immediate supervisor. 

6. Any violation of the terms of this Policy or failure to fti!'till one's obligations under 
this Policy may result in reassignment and/ or disciplht6i0Gp to and including 
termination, as the County deems appropriate und!if'ili��qircumstances. f:/,;''�� - -� -" ''-:A0::A0 

�-

7. Iowa County Board of Supervisors may i10rffar�i�ipate in
'�By;9punty employment 

selection process that includes applicaxi:f�J�Ko are an immedilit�.family member or 
""''<'�/,;:'/ -- � ----with whom they are involved in an int�leJelationship. Consisten;t,w!th the terms 

of the Iowa County Ethics Ordinance, Io\Vl\��µnty '"'/ of Super�i&Qts may not 
participate in any official actic}il;ctl)at substantii\'\F • 

·. . . .  

salary, hours, career progress; li�!l�:t!ts,. or other f 
employment of an immediate fa�ilYhl�rob\:r. In 
conflict of the C;;Ytnty B;;�a·W()mber m 
that official ·· ·· 

2.4 Orientation• 
-� ----_,-_- -:: ::.:>,--- -

--- 'z-:A:��+:-> 

cuse themselves from 

On theJ;il's{J�y ofgriij)ii')ywent, · y.,l)e first op during the first payroll period, all new 
employ��§ �ll meet with'-Oi�ir. imri°l��tlte or his/her designee who will advise new 
employee� o�ajl general co�dftlons of�°t�lpyment such as County rules, hours of work, and the 
responsibilitieS.oftJie position. ;�ach empf6yee will also receive a copy of his/her job description 
and other relevant'liforature. J�.;-j 
The Department Head a1{d£gi:·.t@riediate supervisor will orient each new employee to the 
conditions related to his/her�jpb and worksite. This will include introductions to fellow workers, 
work stm1dards, workplace safety including Hazard Communication, break periods, supplies and 
other information. 

The Iowa County Employee Relations Director will meet with new employees on the first day of 
employment or as soon as possible thereafter to obtain information necessary for personnel 
records, and provide orientation and enrollment in benefits for which the employee is eligible. 

5 
Revised 03/30/2016 

Employment Handbook 



2.5 Resignation 

This policy applies to any employee receiving compensation from the County. If provisions of an 
applicable collective bargaining agreement conflict with this policy, the labor agreement will 
apply in those sections. 

Section 1 Notice for Non-Management Positions -

Employees wishing to resign in good standing shall give written notice to Employee 
Relations and their Depaiiment Head not less than ten (;l;Q). working days before such 
resignation is effective. Failure to provide required ,'"''�fuay negatively impact 
benefits, or future County employment. 

Section 2 Notice for Management Positions - '"{':---_-�:-

Department Heads or manager/superv�;;;;;;,Y ishing to resign\ri\�03,d standing shall give 
written notice to the County Administrat!:ft;and their immediate slitlt':tvisor with a copy 
provided to Employee Relations, not less

'fil""'·, . ) working d'ay§,,before such 
resignation shall be effectiv�. Written notice fion for the Courlty'�dministrator 
shall be given to the County Board wi1� .a copy p 0,sled to Employee Relations. Failure 
to provide required notice may ��gatively,;il)1JJact bifr"'' , or future County employment. 

Section 3 I'inal Days of;I;;m'R'l'c/Y!llent -
_£!:,-- '.'.:,;z:;::.'""""''-"-2'"21:"'-. 

Unless an ex�lptlon is �pp[�yed by tlie!�j'Jip{f)' Adu;'iliTJrrator, all employees are required 
to work an equi\i1tt':pt numb"�R of product{ye working days from delivery of written 
resign!l1iQ11.notice \f'''·· t 
descriB�cf iI1 Sections 1 

; emJiloyee's lasfday9f ac 
proqµf:tive work i6itlie, Co 

Section 4 T;:&il1ation Notice J.;.; 

of �'CtHl.ll work based upon specific requirements 
loyee benefits are not earned beyond the 

s the last day the employee is completing 

Departmeni'Hea,ds sha!hnotify Employee Relations of an employee's resignation within 
48 hours of the tllc.llip(!)f;that notice. 

Section 5 All Resignations Final -

All resignations shall be final. Iowa County may waive the notice requirement in its sole 
discretion. 

Section 6 Failure to Provide Notice -

Failure to provide required timely written notice may result in immediate termination of 
MTO/Sick accrued benefits. 

6 

Revised 03/30/2016 

Employment Handbook 



Section 7 Job Abandonment -

The County considers lmauthorized absences of three (3) consecutive workdays as job 
abandonment which results in an employee's self-termination. Unauthorized is defined as 
agreement between the Department Head and County Administrator that the absence was 
not warranted. 

Section 8 Exit Interviews -

Exit interviews may be conducted by Employee RelatiQJI§,to gain insight into the 
/£"-dhi07!h0 

effectiveness of County management practices, to '"mifne where procedures are in 
need of review or revision, and to determine wh erial practices need 
modification or improvement. The exit interyi igned to inform exiting 
employees of their rights under the law 311:�'f<Jdiscuss ava1 > "ty of continued benefits. 
Exit interviews will be conducted wh�n�y�rpossible regardles reason for leaving, 
position held, or length of service. 

Section 9 Return of County Equipmc;:11t-

Employees must return Cou�t�fa"ef\tjf!9ation, vefi¥�les .• books, manuals, keys, tools, 
equipment and other County o��g itErrt�Il.ll] or befof�;;fbeir last day of work. In the event 
an employee leaves his/her emplciY:irtent ;itfi'''· turnIBg�Qgunty property, the employee 
is subject to Agnruustrative or legJ0:' c said property. 

SECTION'l; 1!}1VIPLOYMENT 
3.1 Background Check:S'.!.Z;c 
As a condlti<Jn1gf employ�e�t fall new���� shall be required to pass a background check. 

3.2 Fitness for Dutv'Examin 

As a condition of an offef'1if;�fuployment for the following positions, a Fitness for Duty Exam is 
required: 

Highway: Commissioner, Operations Manager, Lead Crewperson, Equipment Operator, Section 
Maintenance Patrol, Auxiliary Maintenance Patrol, Mechanics; and 

Bloomfield Healthcare: Director of Nursing, Nurse Manager, Infection and Prevention Manager, 
Registered Nurse, Certified Nursing Assistant, Activity Director, Activities Assistant, 
Environmental Services Director, Environmental Services - Maintenance, 

7 

Revised 03/30/2016 

Employment Handbook 



Laundry/Housekeeping Supervisor, Laundry and Housekeepers, Dietary Supervisor, Dietary 
Aide and Cooks; and 

Environmental Services: Environmental Services Director and Environmental Services -
Maintenance. 

3.3 Employee Classification Status 
Full-time Employee: A full-time employee is one who is n9rlj1i).ffy scheduled to work between 
thirty two (32) and forty ( 40) hours per week, dependin&cp!J2""'; 5'artment, on a regular basis of 52 
weeks per year. Full-time employees are eligible for alt;,Qoti ,tnefits including health, dental, 
vision, life and disability insurance, Section 125 f!�xillle'.�pendirt ,�p£ounts, Section 457 
deferred compensation, Long -term care insur ''7�ftirement ben"etf''. MTO, and holiday pay. 

Part-tinie Employee: A part-time employee is 
thirty two (32) hours per week, on a regular basis 
may be eligible for County benefits,b,as!.lf! upon the n 
eligible, benefits are offered on a pro,rat�d 1liisis. 

is normally sche tilt;d to work less than 
r year. Parl1�ttne, employees 

ours worked p�r'.i�eek. If 

Casual, Seasonal and Li�ited Term 0.l}µ'ploye�si Casual , sea ,,�<!l and limited-term employees 
are employees hired foi• sp��J:t'ie.i;�riods ofctime and ar�tl{)ti;ligib�for County benefits. 
Employees under thj���lsi2�ific!lti0!l ,who meetWRS ¢ligibility ·reguirements may become eligible 
for benefits. •;) Tff;E:, ;,,;� • 

·-:::�8£0:_, \�/-'/-
Exempt E1Uplgy!,le�.: Exerrf' 
eighty (8Q)lioiif�'�'�r:pay perio . 
compert$atory time off Ex!?mpt 

'--'0 --- - - ---

hours in a'pa.y period or suppj�tpent 

"ll be p�ig on a salary basis, but for no more than 
's)ifre not entitled to overtime or 
cted to work a minimum of eighty (80) 

Non-Exempt'Elliployees: Nort��xempt erll�loyees are paid on an hourly basis for all hours 
actually worked. ''f,J'�n,exempt �ltl�loyees, will be paid one and one-half (1-1/2) tilnes their 
regular rate of pay foraUproc\i.t�tH>e hours worked over forty (40) in a work week. Non-exempt 
employees may substitute:ov!.)ttifile for compensat01y time off as set forth in Section 5.8 ofthis 
Handbook. , 

3.4 Transfer and Promotions 
Employees who are promoted shall be placed at the step in the pay range that results in a pay 
mcrease. 

8 

Revised 03/30/2016 

Employment Handbook 



Employees who transfer to a lower paid position shall be placed at the starting step in the wage 
schedule. 

3.5 Hire Date/Status Date 
Hire Date: The hire date is defined as the employee's start date with Iowa County. 

Status Date: The status date is when an employee changes employment status with Iowa County. 
(i.e. going from part-time to full-time, changing positions) 

3.6 Pay Period/Pay Day 
Iowa County is on a bi-weekly payroll syste 
a Saturday and ends on a Friday for all employ 
Rehabilitation Center. Bloomfield payr 
Saturday. All employees are pmu·, d�

f
�;�l��bt���� 

falls on a holiday, the workday h 

3. 7 Direct Deposit 

"'-,,,f,'\fci 

'ins on Sunday,)lll,d ends on a 
nd of the pay peii6d. If a payday 
ayday. 

exemptions, individuals t 

Employee Relations of any changes in personal data. 
numbers, number and naJnes of dependents, number of tax 

tacted in the event of emergency, certification achievements 
related to position, and othe such status reports must be accurate and current at all times. 

Changes in Nfillle: Employees are required to provide documentation with correct naJne to 
Employee Relations 

Mailing Address, Phone Number and Emergency Contact: Employees can provide Employee 
Relations with an email or written notification of the chm1ge. 

9 

Revised 03/30/2016 

Employment Handbook 



Driver's Licenses and Commercial Driver's License: Employees are required to notify 
Depatiment Head/Supervisor and Employee Relations if a CDL is revoked, suspended or 
expired. Employees who are required to possess a valid driver's licenses are required to notify 
Department Head/Supervisor and Employee Relations ifthe Driver's Licenses has been revoked, 
suspended or expired. 

3.9 Death 

Upon the death of an employee, the County shall pay to the. 
accumulated and unused MTO, compensatory pay and . 
deceased employee may have otherwise been <01114rn.1<0 
Eligible dependents of the deceased employee 
coverage. 

3.10 Reduction in Workforce 

of the deceased employee all 

The County may reduce the size of the, 
that doing so is in the best interests of th 
notice prior to a reductig!i;ig;worJd'orce tha. 
The County shall paitothe elllpl<)yee all ac 
eligible for Health alidI'illntal ben�fits under 

. wheneve .-:fti\:termines, in its sole discretion, 
.CountyfWiJ!yrovide 30 calendar days' 

Employees may ins· 
by law. 

Q��e si!j.)1\fation from employmenl. 
ui\��rf MTO. The employee is 

d mXrAl'.a,iiled for each active Iowa County employee. Personnel 
elati�Kllfuepartment in the Courthouse. 

er Wisconsin Law and must follow all procedures provided 

3.12 References or Employment Verifications 

Iowa County Employee Relations processes all references and employment verification requests. 
The County will verify information relating to dates of employment, and position title. Iowa 
County may release additional information only in the event that an employee, through their 
prospective employer fills out an Iowa county "hold harmless" form. By signing the "hold 

10 

Revised 03/30/2016 

Employment Handbook 



harmless" form, Iowa County is not liable for any information provided to a prospective 
employer. 

Counseling related to performance improvement will generally take place prior to any initial 
disciplinary action and is not considered discipline; however any counseling given shall be 
documented. 

Discipline may result when an employee's actions do n5.1(��i!J\lXP1 with generally accepted 
standards of good behavior, when an employee violate�2�p�lit)'fi)r;Jule, when an employee's 
performance is not acceptable, or when the empl2���)1 �onduct fsli'a�trimental to the interests of 
Iowa County. An employee is expected to perfilf'"'Jfo the greatest e;.'.t��t9f his/her ability . 

Any list of rules of conduct is incomplete. 
to provide examples of the types 

• Dishonesty 
• Falsification or records 
• 

• 

• 

• 

Removal of Colltii¥�!)\on!.'y, mercn 
County withQYf p�tirris�ll.i!]..� 
Jnsubordinati�h�iJr.refusa!''±•y;.omply wit\l0the 
Unauthorized usfF · ty 

• "'JJeitfucti��, rl�glige�t �F®authorize 
ei!llipment or pr�p&�x, .. 

• Us'e �f·f>fficial positi6nJor per . · Lgain "--S-ii'.S:i,, 
• Engagirtgtt1. discriminat@j'y or abu�ive conduct 

... 
o")pg non-e:B�tistive list is meant 

":7 "<,c.'.o>: 

'disciplinary actiOUi.' 

.. :.ng being in property of the 

misappropriation of County 

• Failure to t�p9rt or disrelf�iding a violation of safety rules and regulations 
• Violating safei:�r,1:1Jes ��iliifegulations . 
• Divulging or mi;usi\i'g\ltlnfidential information 
• The use of profanity�r abusive language 
• Violation of applicable county policies, procedures and/or applicable ordinances 
• Violation of State and/or Federal laws and regulations 
• Knowingly making false or malicious statements with the intent to harm or destroy the 

reputation, authority or official standing of individuals or organizations 
• Inconsiderate treatment of residents, visitors or co-workers 
• Disruption of facility routine 
• Failure to follow prescribed resident care plan 

11 

Revised 03/30/2016 

Employment Handbook 



When a possible violation of County policy or work rules,,, ·· '','2curred, Department Heads are 
expected to collaborate with the Employee Relations De ' 'e,j}!_prior to determining whether to 
issue formal discipline or informal counseling. All . f'c)" al cii'ti'@(lling must be document in 
writing and shared with the Employee Relations.. ent to enl:Ut�:"that a complete 
employment history is maintained. All discip action taken mu�t58i·coordinated with the 
Employee Relations Department to ensure that 
followed. Documentation of all formal discipline 
Depmiment. 

Formal disciplinary action may range
'�{)��Ww:fiing to i 

the seriousness of the offense. The Couftty reseivil�:l't!ie right, 

3.14 Grievance Procedu'test' 

·ate termination, depending upon 
sole discretion, to impose 

· ·es of the individual case. 

te ;��tdipg the application of County policies regarding an 

A. 

ion c)j'J�iirBioyment, or a dispute concerning workplace safety. 
· der this policy unless it is in writing and contains all of the 

of the grievant; 

B. A clear and concise statement of facts surrounding the grievance; 

C. The issue involved; 

D. The relief sought; 

E. The date the incident or alleged violation took place; 

12 

Revised 03/30/2016 

Employment Handbook 



F. Any specific section of this Handbook or workplace safety rule alleged to have been 
violated; and 

G. The signature of the grievant and the date. 

1 .  The term day's means regular business day, Monday through Friday, excluding weekends 
and holidays regardless of whether the employee or his or her classification is scheduled 
to work. The time within which an act is to be done under this policy shall be computed 

2. 

3 .  

4. 

5. 

by excluding the first day and including the last day. 

, temporary or seasonal full or 
lude elected officials or 

A "grievant" for the purpose of this Procedure is an 
part time employees of Iowa County. This does .. · 

independent contractors. At the grievant' s cg. r;·cffl;;,. they may be represented by a 
person of their choice. 

"Workplace safety" means those condi't)§RKrelated to physical and safety of 
employees enforceable under federal or St�te l1:1w, or C�nmty rule n� to: safety of the 
physical work environment, the safe operatfo�;gf WQtkpl�ce equipmen tools, 
provisions of personal protec .. t,iipment, traift[ftjf�nd warning requirements, 
workplace violence and accide ·:�lf···· • · · 

"Discipline" means oral reprima:iss�where en re�of� ofthe reprimand is placed in 
the employee's file), written reprm;·• ·• nd dtimbtion. Discipline does not 
include performance revieW�, work pl 
reprimand. 

"-"!L"· · 
"T�J'rn]i\:�ii!fn'�• !llean:� clischlttgelfbrfi <:)llPlo ,'.ent. Layoffs (reduction in force) are not 
::•8��sfd;�d·fil�i�,\\t,ion� 'a:hd \\Te not subj§ot til'1his procedure. 

ProceduJ�§!•:. ·s��·· � · 
<::;:;;"-. 

··{,��=�?. �::_:!�'.�::;;t} 
First Step ... \y!:- "" ";'.{fi�; 
Within ten (10) days 1i •. �r the f.l!§!�Jupon which the grievance is based or should have reasonably 
become known, the enip( ""�11 present the written grievance to his/her innnediate 
supervisor. The immediat ·ervisor shall give a written answer within ten (10) days ofreceipt 
of the grievance, with a copy to the County Administrator. 

An employee who has been notified of termination may process the grievance commencing at 
Step 3 .  

Second Step 

If the grievance is not satisfactorily resolved at Step!, it may be submitted by the grievant to the 
County Administrator within five (5) days after having received the answer in the First Step. 

13 

Revised 03/30/2016 

Employment Handbook 



After receipt of the written grievance by the County Administrator, he/she or the designated 
representative of the County Administrator will meet with the grievant within five (5) days in an 
effort to resolve the issues(s) raised by the grievance. Within ten (10) days after the meeting, the 
County Administrator shall respond to the grievance in writing. The County Administrator shall 
also detennine if the grievance is timely, ifthe subject matter of the grievance is within the scope 
of the policy and otherwise properly processed as required by this policy. If the County 
Administrator is aware of other similar pending grievances, the County Administrator may 
consolidate those matters and process them as one grievance. 

Third Step 

Upon the written request of the grievant in response to .. ru}·a ·\){§� decision, the decision at the 
second step may be appealed by a written statemen:t.J�Avai·ded'ti\'.tb,�. County Administrator 
particularly describing the reason for appeal. Ift ecision at Stept2'i� based in whole or in part 
on the basis of timeliness, scope of the grievaQ'. , ocess or other failUt()·!j>f the grievant to 
properly follow the process, the matter shall be'l>l'feJ:Ted to the.A;ounty Boaiifwho shall determine 
whether the matter should be processed further. rl''t"'•·. ecg!i��fep decision'Is•Btl the merits of 
the grievance, only the grievance wi)Lb().teferred to an . •i�ful Hearing Offic�}(!HO). The 
IHO will be designated by the County1�ami!ii§trator. Ar! s incurred by the IHO will be 
paid by the County. The IHO will con�t¥�e �W��ri}gjn the .. .c.l'r he or she deems appropriate. 
The IHO shall have the

. 
,<lM.th2l:iP' to admilliste

.
r oatlis; i.�§ subffe\2�®s at the request of the 

�:
e
:�=�o

d
;:::n7ll\�illi:::��i�i;c::��iffI���i�hea�i •e!}:�!=d�t:1:: �����;

it 

,,�,-�:'- =::;;'" 
'""''" ' 

The burden of proof shalF!l�•s;.a p 
cases, th

.
e §Biititity s,hajl hav�'tlJ'• < 

burde11. 'Vhe IH o ;.n�y r!;:q1.1est 
parties 'fi'Wtitten decisioll. 

erance ol'i'fil.1; evidence". In termination and discipline 
rk fa£>.�,safety cases, the employee shall have the 
.J�tents and replies. The IHO shall provide the 

"""�" 

The IHO �·�y;;qJ:lJy consider ;!ielll]atter pr,, nted in the initial grievance filed by the employees. 
The IHO shall llave11� power tci"aqd or subtract from or modify the terms of the Board policy or 
rule that forms the basi§for the,��!'!:vance. 

Fourth Step 

Either party may appeal on adverse determination at step three to the County Board, by filing 
written notice appealing the decision of the IHO in the County Administrator's Office within ten 
(10) days of issuance of the IHO decision. The County Board shall schedule the review of the 
IHO's decision within thirty (30) days after receipt of the appeal. The review will be conducted 
by the Board during a closed session meeting. The Board may make its decision based on the 
written decision of the IHO or the Board may examine any records, evidence and/or testimony 
produced at the hearing before the IHO. A simple majority vote of the Board membership shall 

14 

Revised 03/30/2016 

Employment Handbook 



decide the appeal within twenty (20) days following the last session scheduled for review. The 
Board will issue a final written decision which shall be final and binding on all parties. 

Timelines: 

Failure to process a grievance by the grievant withln the time limit, or agreed upon extension, 
shall constitute waiver for the grievance and will be considered resolved on the basis of the 
County's last answer. Failure of the management representative to meet the time limits shall 
cause the grievance to move automatically to the next step in the procedure. To encourage that 
grievances are addressed in a prompt manner the time limits �eeb··. the policy are intended to be 
strictly observed and may not be extended except in extrem, umstances and then only upon 
the express written consent of the parties. 

Exclusive Remedy: 

This procedure constitutes the exclusive proc 
defined herein. However, nothlng in this griev 

and employees are encouraged to doz, 
raised by employees shall be consider' 
any applicable Board policy or directiv 

SECTION 4: EMP:{.lQYMEJN'f EXP 

4.1 Safety and''Re1'sonal Ptfitective'El(iilfoment 

/:'"'�--

;;�""""'""'"'"';0:0::::5:;�:�:1:01:::_ --"'"" - -- --cz.- - --�-__ 

It is th�'[aff�y of Iowa'e�)mty td''p£�)]}10te a sare",Working environment for all its employees. 
OSHA it�d.ards have be�ff[��2pted i@:a.�nforced for Wisconsin's safety and health rules 
governing ptt�li9 sector (state�®4 loc;l)w�rkplaces. --:1:-i- -�;::-�J< ""'--" 

-<.0::::-:0 

Iowa County wanes''' 
necessary support an 

nsure �fAmployees wear safety equipment that will provide them the 
t · '���quired to the job they are assigned. 

-; - -" 

Departments shall periodicii y have a certified hazard assessment completed to determine the 
types of workplace exposures and identify the appropriate types of personal protective equipment 
if any. 

Iowa County Departments will provide the following Personal Protective Equipment, if needed 
for the employee's position: 

• Eye and Face Protection (safety glasses) 
• Head Protection (hard hat) 

15 

Revised 03/30/2016 

Employment Handbook 



• Hand and Ann Protection (gloves) 
• Foot and Leg Protection 
• Hearing Protection 
• Body Protection 

Iowa County positions that are required to wear safety Foot Protection (steel toe-shoes) receive 
an allowance. (Referenced in 4.2 Appearance and Demeanor and 4.2a Shoe Allowance) 

Employees may provide their own personal protective equipme t. Employees are required to 
notify their immediate supervisor when they are first provid · ir own personal protective 
equipment. Iowa County is responsible to assure its ade 
and proper sanitation of such equipment. As a result, 

ncluding proper maintenance, 
retains the right to inspect 

They may replace at their and approve any and all protective equipment provtd�cl y emplo 
discretion and cost or utilize County provided t:;Jlmpment. 

/ -- -::�?:.:-c 

Employees will be responsible for following th���cl�partment) safety pl 
'<:�--_-i:.-0.?-

4.2 Appearance and Demeanor 

The County requires all ewploy,ees to pre' t a pro 
Accordingly, each e111ploy�� fsfequired to rtt'iµta 
and hygiene while o� dJity or condllf<ting Cou 

1 i1�i��'.to, the public and clients. 
standards of dress, grooming 

Iowa Coun!Y'"9 
and appR\lE�dt�t 

f;!;?�"' 
y:-- ;f 

• 

• 

• Trousers and sfac'' 

t-"" '---

"�0JJ'' 

frayed, worn, faded or patched 
sses and skirts 

• Colored denim and uroy pants and skirts, blue jean skirts and jumpers 
• Blouse, long and short sleeve dress shirts, ties, knit tops, knit shirts, polo/collared shirts 
• Sweaters, vests, jackets or blazers, suits 
• Dress shoes/boots, dress sandals, athletic shoes 

Basic guidelines for appropriate workplace dress do not include: 

• Soiled, torn or ripped clothing 

16 

Revised 03/30/2016 

Employment Handbook 



• T-shirts, halter tops, thin strapped tops and other backless and/or low-cut apparel (unless 
a sweater or sh01i sleeve shiti is worn over at all times) 

• Sweatshilis, sweatpants or workout attire 
• Shorts 
• Dresses or skirts more than three (3) inches above the knee 
• Sheer clothing or clothing that is otherwise revealing, distracting, or provocative 
• Pants or skirts worn below the waistline 
• Beach type sandals/shoes 
• Clothing with language or pictures that are considere!:V�ffehsive or inappropriate (i.e. 

sexually suggestive, advertising alcohol or tobacspJgt�dG:cts, promoting adve1iing firms 
and/or contractors that do business with the CpW),fyf 

Individual depmiments may be subject to a diffe · Ati�J.�ss code defnfod by the depmiment. 
However, employees are expected to follow t . ty's general guftlelihe.s regarding the 
condition of clothit1g and the content of appare while pe1forming du{fes for the County. 

Bloomfield Healthcm·e: Please refe1;c1q the Iowa Coun 

Highway Department: Shop and Labor¢�&lliJ:>f&y�e§ are ab urchase uniforms from 
contracted vendor. Empl H who chodS§J,iot t�'iJfi£s�.i!�e fr dor are able to wear t-shirts, 
sweatshi1is, jem1s and F ro§;�S weather re.latec!. i!i:Emplqy.1,:es are•required to wear steel toe 
shoes. Weather can �. ,sionally·�ii�se extreit�J!:'WP�ratur�s!;it.ts expected that employees 
dress accordil1gly. If·rl�q§�sary, pll'rror weathe��jlanges by dr�ssi11g in layers, or having 
alternative clpthi11� opti�ii§'�¥�1l!..... 

• . .  »<f;§,;'!§J::'J'.- ---�-�;:,§ 
Enviroijmerltal Servi6es:iJo:mpl�y 
tennis sho§s. or work boots'�'•c• 

Employees wh�IP�rfmm field itl�pection work (Land Conservation/Planning and Zoning) are 
required to wear st�eJtpe shoes.;while performing field inspection duties. 

There may be situations req�i'f:lfig more formal attire. If you are conducting or attending 
meetings, seminars, etc. where you come in contact with other business professionals, you are 
expected to represent the County in a professional manner and dress appropriately for conducting 
such business. 

Hair, beards, and mustaches are to be clean, trimmed and well-groomed. 

17 

Revised 03/30/2016 

Employment Handbook 



Colognes, after-shave lotions, perfumes, accessories and cosmetics should be worn with 
consideration for professional image and the comfort of co-workers. Strong scents should be 
avoided because coworkers or individual citizens might be offended or allergic to these scents. 
Visible body jewelry and mi, such as nose, lip, eyebrow, cheek, and tongue piercings and visible 
tattoos m·e prohibited. Iowa County will make every effort to accommodate employees' 
religious or national customs. 

Employees who appear for work inappropriately dressed will be sent home and directed to return 
to work in proper attire. Under such circumstances, employee�4M,'ill not be compensated for the 
time away from work. The smne will apply to employees e '�!tihg unacceptable oral or 
physical hygiene. 

Employees who violate dress code standards may l:)efiibj"ect to 

Note: Effective in 2018, Iowa County will ob�e£YiJia professional busit)e_s§ 
and will observe Friday's to be casual dress day. \ 

Iowa County will provide � .. �·VJ V 

4.1 Appearance and Dell1e:!Jri,Dr1for ste:el 
year, which will be tei1mb1urs<od tc1•'etilpklye<os 

.. 

. :�-�- <-;?.'::¥!,�:-,:, 

4.3 Tardin�ss 
--:::;;:,:::,_ '---

owance'{()�:(lmployee positions noted in 
�.\?J§\iUJl t6�inaximum of$60.00 once a 

sentai.liln'!i'f an approved paid receipt. 

Arriving <ln:J);l_e job at the tin) to work is both a courtesy and an obligation 
owed to the C�\!nty, your co-W'cfrkers public we service. The County recognizes that 
there may be tllll��;�when empl s are delayed in getting to work. However, two (2) or more 
unexcused tardines�.-i�J3jdents ing within a single pay period will be considered excessive 
and may result in dis�fP'.lfJJ,�._��-tibn. Habitual, repetitious or patterns of tardiness will also be 
subject to disciplinary aci:lo�.�'''' 

In the event of weather related tardiness, employees will be considered excused. 

Depmiment Heads may grant an excused tardiness for unforeseen circumstances. Employees are 
expected to inform their immediate supervisor of their tardiness. 

18 

Revised 03/30/2016 

Employment Handbook 



Iowa County expects regular attendance from all employees. This is absolutely necessary to 
fulfill our obligation to the public, guarantee good customer services and maintain effective 
working relationships. 

An absence shall constitute an occurrence under this policy if the employee gives his/her 
immediate supervisor less than 16  hours of notice prior to the start of their scheduled shift that 
they are unable to work their shift. 

Occurrences will be tracked on a six month rolling calen g on an employee's hire date. 

Step 1 :  Employees receiving six occurrences on a 
written disciplinary action 

Step 2: Employees receiving more than six occ:Uti 
subject to a one day unpaid suspension. 

Step 3 :  Employees receiving ten oc 
termination. 

Employees whose employµ;i�nt history; b 
habitual, repetitious or pattetn�Qf absences 
action. 

Management reserves th�'.J"i:g\lt to ui61its' discret 
. .jn coti��J!!lti81f'wltii;�wplo 

. 

alendar will be provided a 

pnth r6fJihg calendar period, shows a . 
senHnay trigger disciplinary 

·n applying this policy under special or 

As no • .  ,
.
Section 2. , ..• :nloye6s�W.\lo have tfilJe11(3) consecutive unauthorized absences will 

be dee�Jafo:1.have aband�H�t.1.stheir �°hiployment and voluntarily self-terminated. 
'''",'"'""' ''&'.

_
"'(; ' -�--' 

';_;-:>':cc, '':;'.J�!§: ·�·:_;;; :_:{: 
Employees are"t()·tciill their dire�fu§.upervi�8i to report their absence immediately and no later 
than their scheduf�akti!µe ofwofi�Employees are to leave a message iftheir supervisor is not 
available. Departm�fil��d ·'1.§�ers will call employees back if a message is left. 

Employees who call in aft start of their scheduled shift may be subject to discipline 
regardless of the number of occurrences they have accumulated. 

Absences due to illnesses or injury that qualify under the Family and Medical Leave Act 
(FMLA) will not be counted against an employee's attendance record. 

Department Heads/Supervisor will consult with Employee Relations Department regarding any 
disciplinary action. 

19 

Revised 03/30/2016 

Employment Handbook 



4.5 Other Employment 

Employment with Iowa County is considered a primary responsibility. Any Iowa County 
employee may hold a job outside of County employment only if, the outside job does not 
distract, discredit, or interfere with employment with the County. Employees are required to 
notify the County prior to accepting outside employment to ensure that it does not conflict with 
County employment. 

4.6 Identification Badges "'\u 

All employees, elected officials, and appointed officialil·fil'��JS'�i.fed a photograph identification 
card through the Information Technology System�Jli),e�liftment.''{BJg(J,!llfield Healthcare will 
issue its own photograph identification cards. ld�!J,tffication cards �iJf:hiive the individual's first 

/!HE:2:Yhj/ -'-:_,>,_o__;-and last name on the front of the card. DeparfQ:i�il;t Heads may requestthlj'tpnly the employee's 
fust name is printed on the front of the card. Id��lf!c;ation may alsri�·e issued to 
individuals providing volunteer or Sl]().c,ial services'"if!J,�:;fo · the respectivi:''.'Jri<epartment 
Head has requested that they be issu�glj'c,ig� . 

"- -----
All employees, elected officials, and app�jnted'o�j'i<;itl!s mus '"£.s�� the identification card so it is 
visible whenever perforll}.i[lg;Jl1e duties oft�eir Cotili�ct}J11Ployiff(q�pr representation. The card 
must be worn on the ffi��Bf:ti\�;�µtermostg'�e11.1,�itli�t;li�frW1me'afid photograph visible. The 
exception to this is {fi\:�j6yees ;!f��putinely'wo '5"litdoor�: su�h as Highway Department 
employees, or at the <li��!�!ipn of �''"unty Adm! . tor. 

Employees· losl!lgll!,t}.if bad��[ • • los:';�ediately to their department. 

,card must have another card made at a charge 
the replacement is necessary due to the ordinary wear 

and tear in the{��urse of empl6.�ent, n change, or change of department or employment 
status, the five dblt{ll" ($5.00) fe'�"�ill not be charged to the employee. 

Photographs taken b�fowa CotJllfy are considered Iowa County property and Iowa County may 
use them for business puti{���s'. ' 

4.7 Workplace Smoking 

Smoking in County facilities is prohibited. All county employees are subject to County 
Ordinance 600.26 regarding smoking on County property. Ordinance 600.26 is maintained in 
the County Clerk's Office and on the Iowa County website. 

20 

Revised 03/30/2016 

Employment Handbook 



4.8 Alcohol and Drug Abuse 

Employees are forbidden to use, sell, possess, transfer or purchase alcohol, illegal drugs or 
controlled substances at any time during the work day or anywhere on Iowa County property or 
while performing Iowa County business. Employees violating this policy will be subject to 
immediate discipline. 

Employees under the influence of alcohol or drugs on the job will be subject to 
discipline. Employees who appear to be in an impaired conditi on the job may be asked by 
their supervisor to submit to a test to determine whether the der the influence of alcohol 
or illegal drugs. Any refusal to submit to a test will be tr · · subordination and will be 
subject to discipline including up to termination. 

Alcohol is defined as follows: (a) Beer as defined(Jit.2.'6 USC 5052 ,],)�the Internal Revenue 
Code of 1954; (b) wine of not less than one h�I@'.gf iine per centum 0£1£1'±·. ol by volume; or ( c) 
distilled spirits as defined in Section 5002 (a) (S)'f(Jf�uch code,, Alcohol i es but is not 
limited to the intoxicating agent in beverage alcohill;:�thyLf(U."ib'hol, or other I olecular 
weight alcohols including methyl . .. ropyl alcohiJt'l'i·�z Y 

An alcohol concentration of 0.02 or gre 
alcohol breath test or blood test may res 

, fal�.0n duty<fbf�!Pwa County, as indicated by an 
i8{!-J1'"'k acti6b:fupto and including termination. 

". i 

Federal Department gfH�althtfud.{;Iuman S"r ""(;;in be used to determine 
presence of illegal dt1.lgs.. · ·· 

Employees who.l:11�
.
st use 'it'gj'esc)1iptk1]1;:gr�g tha es adverse side effects that affect their 

ability t94��1f6ffil,��-�j�ed .Jor�j�6�1d''iif.fogn;!)le pervisor that they are taking such 
medic<l(ibP.,.what the srd�.�f[ectS'"'ilie .and if reque��¢d produce a copy of the original 
prescriptlii' · If the side �ff��t;0fthi'pfoscription drug interferes with the employee's ability to 

ed work, the i��!pyee rll��.b,e required to utilize MTO. 
>:;5;;::� 

.. ,., 

Pre-employmenrti'-sting: As a c·;;;;;qition of employment, applicants will be subject to a pre-
employment drug ;&een.. · 

mployees may be tested for drugs and/or alcohol if he/she has 
been observed using, having possession or impairment, or iflowa County management staff has 
other reasonable suspicion for testing mm/her. Employee Relations must be consulted before 
sending an employee for reasonable suspicion testing. Refusal to submit to testing will result in 
disciplinary action up to and including termination. 

Employees testing positive for illegal drugs and/or alcohol will be subject to disciplinary action 
up to and including te1mination. Employees testing positive may also be subject to 

21 

Revised 03/30/2016 

Employment Handbook 



unannounced follow-up testing anytime during the first six months after returning to work or 
anytime during the course of the substance abuse counseling program. 

Iowa County reserves the right to inspect workspaces and/or vehicles owned by or leased to Iowa 
County at any time in an effmi to enforce this policy. 

Employees that are governed under DOT regulations, please refer the DOT Substance Abuse 
Policy located on the website. 

4.9 Return of County Property 

All employees who separate from their employmenlWl ·Iowa· •>ql;irity must return all County 
property in their possession and complete the appropti8.te form v��lf�)n that the property was 
returned. 

If an employee does not return all County prop�rly); J()\¥a C°:lfilty may repor 
and/or invoice the employee for replace th�.i!�!fi(s), . 
The completed fom1 will be signed 
The original copy will be sent to the 
employee's personnel fi]e_.. . 

Building/Office Kevs ;� ·P;:�tyCards -- - - - '""" - -

loyee and �'.�J)}'y will be given to the employee. 
lations D�pfllff]lient to be placed in the 

Department Heads have tq¢•tight to);cletermine t •• m keys, proximity cards and/or fobs may 
be issuedfg�·I)ft\g�� u

;
n

,
der hls/her, di;e&tlQti. The n!pfitiment Head and/or the Employee 

Relatiqrn��Wfre�t�rhla 2 · uir� fill. eJ:nploy�e ot l!ll·!<iffl5loyees to return keys, proximity cards 
and/o;•roJSi.at any time r an)!.f��son. Th�·c·6�nty Administrator has the right to affirm or 
reverse t�··· • .r Eiripl�'.Ye.e Relations Direction's decision. 

Proximity card§an<JLor fobs ne 
with at least a one"il��6.llotice i .. 

o be requested by the Department Head to the ITS Department 
ible . 

uman Service Building departments need to request a building 
Clerk. 

Employees to whom keys, proximity cards and/or fobs are issued will acknowledge receipt by 
signing the appropriate form which will be maintained in their personnel file. They are expected 
to safeguard the keys, proxinllty cards and/or fobs and to linllt their usage of the keys, proximity 
cards and/or fobs to approved county business. A key, proximity card and/or fob are not to be 
loaned or given to anyone else at any time. Employees who willfully violate this section may be 
subject to discipline. 

22 

Revised 03/30/2016 

Employment Handbook 



Lost keys, proximity cards and fobs must be reported immediately to the appropriate issuer. If a 
replacement key, proximity card or fob is desired, the Depaiiment Head must make a repmi to 
the issuer and a new request must be filled out. If an employee loses a key; employee will be 
charged the whole replacement cost. Employees losing or dainaging a proximity cai·d or fob 
must have another card made at a charge to the employee often dollars ($10 .00) for the first 
occurrence, fifteen dollars ($15 .  00) for the second occurrence and increasing with subsequent 
occurrences to a maximum of fifty dollars ($50.00) per incident. The Department Head may 
determine not to replace a lost key, proximity card or fob. 

Moneys received at the Department level for the above chai:ge�i.wil! be deposited with the 
County Treasurer. The original receipt will be sent to the.4.\lrlployee Relations Department to be 

,;<.:'""'"'------ - -

placed in the employee's personnel file. ,�,>· ··· · 

4.10 Electronic Communication - Acceptab 

It is the intent of this policy to establish guidelines"t3�• 
computing facilities, including comp\J.ttff!hardware, prt 
softwai·e, e-mail, and Internet and inti'1W.�fa¢:g�§§, collecti 

. 
···< .·.•·.:;··/ ·· . 

using Iow�;ciouµty's 
machines, phones, voice-mail, 

called "Information Technology." 

PURPOSE: All employ���.�J;i.are Info��liQn Te�lfu�ll'!gy faci ... Alt Iowa County and these 
resources are limited;,,�)l�S'eif�slli!f es are pr�yided,\o �illpl§x.��s fcSf'the purpose of conducting 
County Business. Tfii',E'.ounty da'�§;;permit a 'fifnlt�Jffmour1Tal;'personal use of these facilities, 
including computers, pf.l�t�JS, e-miU�and Interri�t'�.ccess. However, these facilities must be 
used responsil:Jly by everyb��3.si11ge'fifu§]J�!i bY evelJ!•il few individuals has the potential to 
negatively;i1J\paetp1·oductivity�igf��rij)i c6\iri'11y,l:)µsm.�'ss, and interfere with the work or rights of 
others; ;Tfiet�fore, all petSOJIS are���\:)�cted t6'�iiW.se responsible and ethical behavior when 
using the Qmmty's Informatfoµ Te�filS.cilogy facilities. Any action that may expose the County to 
risks ofun�utliwized access to data, di�&f@we of information, legal liability, or potential 
system failur�Y§'prohibited and.•IDaY resuif"hi disciplinary action up to and including termination 
of employment and/cir.criminal pV�secution. 

POLICY: The use o�•
tfrei(';o.ruaY'� information technology facilities in connection with County 

business and limited pers6fifiliuse is a privilege, not a right, extended to various County 
employees. Users oflowa County's computing facilities are required to comply with all policies 
referred to in this document. 

Users also agree to comply with applicable country, federal, state, and local laws and to refrain 
from engaging in any activity that would subject the County to any liability. Iowa County 
reserves the right to amend these policies and practices at any time without prior notice and to 
take such further actions as may be necessary or appropriate to comply with applicable federal, 
state/province, and local laws. 

23 
Revised 03/30/2016 

Employment Handbook 



To protect the integrity of Iowa County's Information Technology facilities and its users against 
unauthorized or improper use of County facilities, the County will monitor and investigate 
possible misuse. Iowa County reserves the right, without notice, to limit or restrict any 
individual's use of those facilities. The County may inspect, copy, remove, or otherwise alter 
any data, file, or system resource which is used in violation of County rules or policies. Iowa 
County does monitor and has implemented an Internet filter for blocking users from accessing 
ce1iain websites, and may increase the websites blocked as necessary. Iowa County also 
reserves the right periodically to examine any system and other usage and history as necessary 
to protect its Information Technology facilities. 

SCOPE: This policy applies to all Iowa County employ 
all operating units to ensure that these policies are cle 
followed. 

These policies also apply to State employees;: term employees, Jitware contractors, and 
vendors/suppliers providing services to Iowa Co Jxthat br�g.them int6'[�lJ!!!ct with Iowa 
County's Information Technology infrastructure. AhJowa Qi:nl!}ty employe;'WfuLcontracts for 
these paiiicular services is responsil{1 . , .  

'tcir/vendor/suppli��;Wlth a copy of 
these policies before any access is gi .. , 

''\;;f:'?:0� 
These policies cover the usage of all oft 
communication resourq�s, lil!?m�ipg, but n 

• All computer-related �quipm�n�,1�ncluding · 
terminals, workstations,'PlJAs, wir�lcss comput . 

rvers"�d �!ll\t'�a'c�I11pyters, 
�d ..... . . . 

rmatiOhJ'l'echnology and 

evices, telecomm equipment, networks, 
all networks and hardware to which this 

. · c commuruc � .. !JJ1S etj\l!�l)}ent, incl�ding telephones, pagers, radio 
communicatB:�s;,voice-mail, '(W;��l, fai'lii!lchines, PD As, wired or wireless communications 
devices and s�f\ii�es, Internet ;&\i+intranet'fuid other on-line services. 0"·"''2-0 -,,,,�'"''� 

• All software inch{ urcl)�la or licensed business software applications, County-written 
.fi:'·?s�lsupplier-written applications, computer operating systems, 

firmware, and any other so · . are residing on County-owned equipment. 

• All intellectual prope1ty and other data stored on County equipment. All of the above are 
included whether they are owned or leased by the County or are in the County's possession, 
custody, or control. 

• These policies also apply to all users, whether on County prope1ty, connected remotely via 
any networked cmmection, or using County equipment. 

24 

Revised 03/30/2016 

Employment Handbook 



Detailed Electronic Communications Policy 
I .  The content of any and all electronic communications are the property of Iowa County and 

may be monitored to support operational, maintenance, auditing, security, and investigative 
activities. No employee should have any expectation of privacy as to his or her Internet 
usage or any other County provided electronic communications including, but not limited to, 
e-mail, telephones including voice mail, computers, and facsimiles. 

2. Iowa County reserve the right to inspect any and all files stored in private areas of the 
network in order to assure compliance with policy. 

3. All installation, removal or disabling of software O!'i.. must be performed or 
authorized by ITS. All other downloading is prohlbi:t�. uest, ITS will download 
additional applications into a safe environme.Iif'1iiti be evaluate .

• 

c.{gr compatibility with the 
County network. Any software or files d<;>�&icled or installed ilft6 

.. .fue County network 
become the property of the county. Any slli;ff.fjles or software may b�tb\l.ed only in ways 
that are consistent with their licenses or copyfig]its and. tffg County poli�li� •• 

----- ___ , -,- , __ - �zt�>i; 
4 .  User IDs and passwords help m 

resource usage. Any employee wh 
hdividual a� .. . tability for Computer/Internet 

ssworc1'5�·
1f). for a Computer/Internet 

g ofil$�f3Ips or passwords obtained for 
the'mght to the passwords for all 

le(s), programs or data that 

resource must keep that.password co .. • entia . 
access to Internet sife�\i�•prphj.bited. M:·•". e 
data stored on it$.Irtformation Wechnolog . 
cannot he accessg'Cl. Jiy approprl�te manage 

6. Sintei�:vvide variety 6f'iffiaterials J1:t�X be deenied offensive by coworkers, colleagues, 
suppliet$il,hd the generall'\lblic, ifisiif.xiolation of County policy to store, view, print or 
redistributt tmy. document Br graphic tff6 that is not directly related to the user's job or the 

---- " "'-

county's busille&s .activities. : ••• 

7. The display of �Y Kin<.12,Qf�ef�ally explicit image or document on any. County system is a 
violation of the Counfy'§'p�licy on sexual harassment. In ad.dition, sexually explicit material 
may. not be archived, stored, distributed, edited or recorded using County network or 
computing resources. 

8. Transmitting or causing to be transmitted, communications that may be construed as 
sexually suggestive, offensive, demeaning, insulting, harassing or disparaging of others is 
prohibited. Messages which may be considered offensive include messages which contain 
sexual implications, religious slurs, gender-specific comments, or any other comment that 

25 

Revised 03/30/2016 

Employment Handbook 



offensively addresses someone's age, sexual orientation, religious or political beliefs, 
national origin or disability. 

9. Interfering with intended use of Information Technology resources, seeking to gain 
unauthorized access to information resources, or destroying, altering, dismantling or 
otherwise interfering with the integrity of computer base information and/or information 
resources is strictly prohibited. 

IO.No employee may use the County's Information Technology infrastructure to deliberately 
propagate any virus, worm, Trojan horse, or trap-door code. Playing games on 
any Iowa County equipment is also prohibited. 

INTERNET USE POLICY 

12.No employee may use the county's lntemLet.; 
computer system or network, or to circu 
or security of another user. 

1 3 .  Each employee using the Intemef:f'aei!ities of the 
honestly, accurately, and complei�JY:.(�.g.;il)cluding on 
and function where requested) whenpwti2iplJ.!ii}�.in ch�t •. 
up accounts on outsi<:J.e•C.9l11PUter systems. i<f;?,:;;.Jc, 'O,''"', ', 

\���;;, 

mrnsen or herself 
ounty affiliation, position/title 

ewsgroups, or when setting 

14. Only those empl ��,s or offie"'" who are• ·�u1�'al.tthoriz�cFto'speak to the media, to analysts 
or in public gatherhl��cR!l beh fthe Countyi:nay speak/write in the name of the County 
to any I)�yv,sgroup or cff�li •. • �JJ1ployee§.may participate in newsgroups or chats in 
the .1:pl!r$ti()r bi.fsi!rrss.whe ant'{/Y"{f!�y-,.g)lff�s', but they do so as individuals speaking 
onlyfor themselves:��re .. jvidual partiGipant is identified as an employee or agent of 
the County, the empl&yeeinust ·;If"''' e that any political, union or religious advocacy, or 
endorsen:lertl or appearance]qf endm · ent of any commercial product or service is done in 
their individu[\.tsapacity. 

. ... 
4. Use of County Inf�t1fe�.'.1�.��siffacilities to commit infractions such as misuse of County 

assets or resources, hara"f�m�nt which includes sexual harassment, unauthorized public 
speaking and misappropriation or theft of intellectual property are also prohibited by general 
County policy, and will be sanctioned under the relevant provisions of the personnel policies 
that apply to their position. 

5. If an employee is accidentally connected to a site that contains sexually explicit or offensive 
material, he/she must disconnect from that site immediately, and notify the ITS Department 
to identify and address any potentially damaging data to County computer systems. 

26 

Revised 03/30/2016 

Employment Handbook 



6. The County's Internet facilities and computing resources must not be used to violate the laws 
and regulations of the United States or any other nation, or the laws and regulations of any 
state, city, province or other local jurisdiction in any material way. 

7. Use of any County resource for illegal activity is grounds for discipline up to and 
including immediate termination. The County will cooperate with any legitimate law 
enforcement process that results from this activity. 

8. The County will comply with reasonable requests from law enforcement and regulatory 
agencies for logs, diaries, archives and backups on indivi 
could include resurrecting "deleted" files and messages 

' Internet activities, which 

9. All employees with Internet access must take partf ar cai�jl'Q"'i,mderstand the copyright, 
trademark, libel, slander and public speech controI'Iaws to en�\if�·tbeir use of the Internet 
does not inadvertently violate any laws w(licI1;might be enforce�bi/i[· ainst the County. 

1 o. Video and audio streaming technologies repr�s�l1J signif'tcilut data traffi •. &ieh can cause 
local network congestion. Unle��Slt1!'Joyed forjolJ.J'�at<:iQ."t.lse, accessing thes�•resources is 
prohibited. (e.g. Watching video'i@'•;:.;,rr:,i'IY hows, spCJftitg,,events, or listening to the 
radio,etc) i•i;·r • 

11. Downloading software ftohitl;e Internei;i\!nles 
product via the v(Jndor's w�b sit'!, is prolif'"'l 
Department. 

. 

• appr���d 'up grade to an existing 
· ess apj5��ed for use by the ITS 

12. Do����S't�i't\<:ii.i.:sa;�l'�,d��kt�� ti\e!TI<:i�, an . r games from the Internet is strictly 
probi�Jf�d. Play�gg®i.es ort•·tll(;.Internet i� prohibited. 

'< >:;;:!::>.- <:_+_;<��\\-+ - -_ "' ;- '""" 

-- -+7!§:: 
1 3 .  Using ffie�lllternet to acccs�"p.ersona}elAail accounts for non-work related activity must be 

in accord�c�\with the Co\il!�'. s Accept�ble use guidelines for personal use. 
-;.c"-'\!.:C. ;c:- _,, ' 

EMAIL USE POLfGY 

1 5. An Iowa County EmaiF�8'ciress is intended only for official County business and all mail 
becomes property of Iowa County. You are expected to keep personal correspondence to a 
minimum. 

16. Using Iowa County Email for any personal economic gain is not permitted. 

17. Users are not permitted to send chain letters, viruses, and obscene or otherwise 
offensive material through Iowa County Email. 

27 

Revised 03/30/2016 

Employment Handbook 



18 .  Employees shall not use a code, access a file, or retrieve another employee's e-mail 
messages without that person's permission. However, this rule does not prohibit designated 
Information Systems or supervisory personnel from reviewing or monitoring employee e
mail as appropriate. 

19. Users should delete e-mail messages that they send, or that are sent to them, once the 
messages have served their original purpose. All non-County related email and email that is 
not considered open records should be deleted. Employee st not delete messages (or 
files) that do not belong to them. 

20. Users should not forward e-mail intended to be (an 
confidential and for their use only. 

2 1 .  Users should exercise caution 

SOFTWARE USE POLICY 

30. All purchases/downloads of new 
Pursuant to Iowa County Resolutio 

network. 

32. All softw�� ;��t b� 11sed o 
copyrlghts and the cci\iii�,polic 

· ment/Committee must 
omputer on the County 

distribution is prohibited. 

onsistent with their licenses or 

33. InstallaticiA'�ncljor use of peisonal so are from home on County owned a computer 
without permis�ion is prohibi,t�:d. 

:_:�_-/>,_ __,::-'it:"�' 

34. Employees shall re���:C,t0i\nff0abide by the terms of software licenses, including, but not 
limited to a prohibition 'on.reproduction of licensed software. 

35. Any suspected misuse of software shall be reported to the appropriate supervisor. 

HARDWARE USE POLICY 

I .  No new computer hardware can be installed without informing the ITS Department. 
Pursuant to County Resolution # 1 -0999, the ITS Department/Committee must review and 
authorize the purchase of any new computer hardware. 

28 

Revised 03/30/2016 

Employment Handbook 



2. Computer equipment is not to be relocated or reassigned without informing the ITS 
Department. 

3. Swapping internal computer hardware equipment (such as network cards, video cards, hard 
disks, etc.) from one PC to another without authorization from a member of the ITS 
Department is strictly prohibited. 

4. Computer equipment cannot be taken home without writte!l�1Jfhorization from the ITS 
Department (except laptops and notebooks). Employee . 'ing any computer equipment 
home (including laptops or notebooks) must have . �i2n,!rom their Department Head. 

5. The ITS Department must approve any lease · .· 

relates to computer hardware. This includ 
hardware, networking, Internet, and comp 

6. Any non-County hardware, such as ;yendor or sta 
to connecting to the County netWqtk:fot (;lJlY resourc 

7. Any County compute1;�(laptops that �erem��e�ift{)l)1 the ne.;;,g,rk in excess of a month must 
be reviewed by ITS• '·• trrt'.t:fae\:onnectingt9 Cotui't)' !'�'i;oµrce;'tb'.,Ynake sure it is not a security 
threat. 

.. ''' . '.ii'�;; . •  i:•;• ·· . •;;< . · ;;  

45. Pe�sQ!l<!lti1e0�r'co'@llty reso ·�l:lon�i{fi a manner which does not interfere 
witli U'.\lrmal operatiotis.�fthe ty. Exc��f\fe personal use or use that interferes with 
normal Co0unty busines:::ftn:iy res he county restricting or prohibiting all personal 
use for aii'i:llllployee and/or.d�partmen�� 

46. Wishing a "happypii;thday"'�J\\advising of an agency sponsored social event over email is 
permitted. "T ;jc ,,· 

47. Advising employees ofrecreational activities or opportunities, such as holiday 
parties, picnics, retirement parties, etc. is allowed. 

48. Use of the internet to retrieve general information during non-working time (i.e.: 
reading the newspaper on-line, checking weather forecast) is acceptable. 

49. Using an appropriate personal picture as your background on a computer is 
acceptable. 

29 

Revised 03/30/2016 

Employment Handbook 



50. Personal use of County Information Teclmology must be done at no cost to the County 
and has to be limited to lunch time, break time, or 1 5  minutes before or after the 
employees n01mal work day. 

51 .  Information Teclmology should not be used for any purpose that employees would not 
want coworkers or members of the general public to witness. All information stored on 
County equipment is not considered private and may be disclosed under applicable Open 
Records laws or as required by litigation. 

52. If an employee has a question about the proper use of.t 
responsibility to obtain guidance from their Depart or Employee Relations 
Department prior to such use. 

4.11 Mobile Device - Acceptable Use Policy "''" '"'' '""'""' '" 
Iowa County grants its employees the; rivilege of plit6iifl�!i)'g';tnd using smartp . nes and tablets 
of their choosing at work for their co 
privilege if users do not abide by the p ·.G+ 

e. Iowa C6�ty reserves the right to revoke this 
roced���.�l!tlined below. 

This policy is intended to prgt.est the secuti:tjr.and int f lo""1ii.Q0unty's data and teclmology 
infrastmcture. Limited exception$ to the pol¥�'· o variations in devices and 
platforms. 

.. ... . . . .. .  · >·• 

Iowa County el:)lployees riiti�tf!g,i'e�;toJheiterms onditions set forth in this policy in order to 
be able !g;'�g�ieti.tfi,13iI,qevi�� toth�·��fuprtiy l}e 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

The ��crr:I!x. defines acc�plf!ble b�sill6ss use as activities that directly or indirectly supp01t 
the busin���;91 1owa coM1y. 
The county Ci�fifies acqfp1�ble personal use on county time as reasonable and limited 
personal commili\i:�il;Ri�.Jv6r recreation, such as reading. 
Employees are block'ea from accessing ce1tain websites during work hours/while 
connected to the County's network at the discretion of the County. 
Devices' camera and/or video capabilities are disabled while on-site . 
Devices may not be used at any time to: 

o Store or transmit illicit materials 
o Store or transmit proprietary information belonging to another company 
o Harass others 
o Engage in outside business activities 

30 

Revised 03/30/2016 

Employment Handbook 



o Etc. 
• Employees may use their mobile device to access the following county-owned resources: 

email, calendars, contacts, etc. 
• Iowa County has a zero-tolerance policy for texting or emailing while driving and 

devices must be set to a hands-free mode while driving. 

Devices and Support 

• 

• 

• 

Smartphones including iPhone, Android, and Windows/ ones are allowed 
Tablets including iPad and Android are allowed. 

" 

Connectivity issues are supported by ITS; emplg. · d contact the device 
manufacturer or their carrier for operating sysr�· . .• lJ!e-related issues. 

• Devices must be presented to ITS for prop\.JlJqb provisi6rlinf,k<o1nd configuration of 
standard apps, such as browsers, offic9 pf69lictivity software'•'' / .security tools, before 
they can access the network. 

Reimbursement 

• 

• 

The County will not reirnbursb:the emplgyee for a/Ji'er<:entage of the cost of the device . 
The County will not reimburse tli�em;idyee•fqr the f-<lTtbwing charges: roaming, plan 
overages, etc. 

Security '>;:J!j-/:_ 
• In m:<ier. to.prevent'; ·;/; S\1\.lss, dgYl9ES must be password protected using the 

feature§\bftlre de.vice arr, . . . . . �trong'p(\'�$�f.lrd'•i§tequired to access the County's network. 
• 'The county's stro.ng pas;«i()'i;g,policy �·eqtiffes that passwords be at least 8 characters and 

�6ombination of tipp\;r7 anll��.r-case letters, numbers and symbols. Pa�swords will be 
rotatecftiyery 90 days ;ui.d the n:�Wfpflssword can't be one of 1 5  previous passwords. 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

0'0----':-. 
'0>:'>" CC/ 

The dev'ice•urnst lock itilelfwith a password or PIN if it's idle for five minutes . 
After five f�lf€q login at,t�!tlpts, the device will lock. Contact ITS to regain access . 
Rooted (Andrdig}gr jaiflJrbken (iOS) devices are strictly prohibited from accessing the 
network. 
Employees are autociatically prevented from downloading, installing and using any app 
that does not appear on the county's list of approved apps. 
Smartphones and tablets that are not on the county's list of supported devices are not 
allowed to connect to the County's network. 
Smartphones and tablets belonging to employees that are for personal use only are not 
allowed to connect to the County's network. 
Employees' access to County data is limited based on user profiles defined by ITS and 
automatically enforced. 

31 

Revised 03/30/2016 

Employment Handbook 



• The employee's device may be remotely wiped if 1) the device is lost, 2) the employee 
terminates his or her employment, 3) ITS detects a data or policy breach, a virus or 
similar tln·eat to the security of the County's data and technology infrastructure. 

Risks/Liabilities/Disclaimers 

• While ITS will take every precaution to prevent the employee's personal data from being 
lost in the event it must remotely wipe a device, it is the employee's responsibility to take 
additional precautions, such as backing up email, conta,s!§, etc. 

• The county reserves the right to disconnect devices ()�4Jfil>le services without 
notification. 

• Lost or stolen devices must be reported to the . y Wf�!iin 24 hours. Employees are 
responsible for notifying their mobile carr' e,�]Pmediately2�i\pbitloss of a device. 

• The employee is expected to use his or/ evices in an ethica1·m,anner at all times and 
adhere to the county's electronic use p 

• The employee is personally liable for all c 

Iowa County reserves the right 
termination for noncompliance 

4.12 Social Media 

Iowa County has a poli�;\l1$oc· . 
use of social llle(!ia when a�Tu ·' 
policy2™�S'!ll"��ides2�e\ietlll gi\ra / 

· ary action up to and including 

''·"'"" y is intended to provide a framework for 
,unlt'12i!S'triart of an employee's job duties. This 

use of social media by all employees. 

The formS'O:f§ocial media 6J:Zt!i9hnol fened to in this policy include, but are not limited to 
Facebook, Llltlst)dln, Twitter, otbther s· "ar forms of online journals, diaries or personal 
newsletters not Af'f:ili,a,ted with 16'.�� County. 

County-owned tecmid1tig.)!. re.�i&Z&�s are the property oflowa County, as is all data created, 
entered, received, storea','2'ot::if��mitted via County-owned equipment. All use of social media or 
similar technology is subjec'f'!o all County policies, including but not limited to the Information 
Technology Use policy, as well as any existing internet, email, and harassment policies. 

Employees may be subject to discipline, up to and including discharge for conduct that violates 
County policies or rules and regulations, whether such conduct occurs on duty or off-duty. 
Please refer to each of these policies for additional information. 

Please reference the full Social Media - Acceptable Use Policy available on the Iowa County 
website. 

32 

Revised 03/30/2016 

Employment Handbook 



Nothlng in this handbook or in any of the policies is intended to or should be interpreted to 
restrain legitimate protected concerted activity. 

SECTION 5: COMPENSATION 

5.1 Wages 

Iowa County administers a uniform employee Compensation s 
the County to its employees is for the purpose of obtaining 
services which the County provides. 

Iowa County intends to maintain its wage structure PY.P ovi m · General Government 
Committee the Market Rate provided by a Thini;J'�i:tJ' Consultant and benchmark ten (10) 
positions each year as authorized by the Geneta[>@overnment Commi 

'""""'''"-

The General Government Committee makes the slJl�i;<lRterll).itrll.fion on the i !'l[!l.lation provided 
to them regarding the Market Rate a�� salary date f�r'.,fil�,&.@nchmarked positi�J1$l;1' 

5.2 Temporary Wage Adj11stlllent 

An employee may He1:called up;r{fr:qm time t 
be outside their nonnaliy 'as,�igned;du;ties and fil 

tempor 
owa CifiintyJ�lj).lir�:s,t\ltf to a 

.,, ,,_,,,,,, -

,,<,::�;;��i3:�, ''22';';-f,"�', 

make sions or to take action that may 
ns which do not qualify for exception pay. 

e greater functions and duties on a 

· pon 1��Pll.1Jillendati61ffrom the office of Employee Relations is 
authorized"t��temporarily a , ,.wag�s'fotimy non-represented employee who is assigned 
greater esse[1'.rijtlfl.11ties for an 1i��nt or ��blmt position (greater than two weeks) with a short-
term base wage �tf0 ent witHJ�Ca range of 90% to 1 10% of the entry point of the wage grid for 
the vacant position. 

Under certain circumstanc ;�6� recommendation of the office of Employee Relations, the 
County Administrator may authorize more than one individual to receive a temporary wage 
adjustment. 

The temporary wage adjustment shall be funded from the existing Department's budget and may 
not exceed a six month time period unless approved by the General Government Committee. 

Employees who receive a temporary wage adjustment for a vacancy greater than two weeks shall 
have their wage retro-active to the first day of taking the additional responsibilities. 

33 
Revised 03/30/2016 

Employment Handbook 



Social Workers in the Social Services Department assigned "on call" duty will receive a daily 
stipend of $24 during the week (Monday tlu·ough Friday) and a daily stipend of $40 on weekends 
(Saturday and Sunday) and holidays. Employees who are called for worked outside of their 
nonnal work hours while on-call shall be compensated at one and a half (1 Y,) times their hourly 
rate or compensatory time. 

5.4 New Hire Compensation Package 

Iowa County provides a compensation package 
employee compensation and benefit policies. TlJ! ·· 

hire compensation to unique market conditions; · 

based upon existing County 
)1e discretion to adjust new 

Wage and Salary Administration - The Cou customary new hire 
place the new hire at the minimum or starting step iff',the . de establis 
as provided in the Iowa County Coniohmtion Pay Suit'§'> 

Managed Time Off Benefit Admi�ist��tioll g'J;"£e Coun · 
place a new hire on the first tier of the MIO accm\\J'�Pl!;��ule, 

. 

r their position, 

rmal new hire MTO benefit will 
e 0-1 .99 year's level, which is 

' - =--�--- <::::;f: _ _  

Compensation Pac dmitli§"ji tion Di��C�!iJ'll - If b���tis'k of remarkably higher levels of 
education, experience, . ifficu .• arket coif4Jtions (as may be evidenced by difficulty in 
recruiting) t!).e•Jo!lo.wing cfis·'f . u06:!fenjrig coillpensation packages to new hires includes: ------- ,. - --"' - - "'0.CJi:J- -- ,_-,--

� c �-- --

Hiring rnanitgers h�ve authprify}�it'1out fu nsultation, to offer a provisional wage up to 
step twd 0)1 the respective.�age sclf�(i�\� for that position, providing that there is more than one 
step on thats�a�e, based upott,applicaill':q@Jifications,. 

Provisional job ·af{tff� greater �:M! step two on a wage or salary scale requires authorization of 
the County Administt11tw. ····· · 

Provisional job offers gf��tit'Jthan the mid-point on a wage or salary scale requires General 
Govermnent Committee authorization. 

Hiring managers will have the authority to offer provisional job offers of MTO accruals up to the 
2-5 years accrual tier. 

Provisional job offers that include MTO accruals greater than tier two (2-5 years) of the MTO 
Policy requires authorization of the County Administrator. 

34 

Revised 03/30/2016 

Employment Handbook 



Provisional job offers that include MTO accruals greater than tier three (6-10 years) of the MTO 
Policy requires General Government Connnittee authorization. 

The County Administrator is authorized to offer market exception pay or benefits to positions 
that are clearly difficult to fill based upon market conditions. 

Any exception granted to standard hiring practice must be documented in consultation with 
Employee Relations. 

5.5 Performance Evaluation Reviews and Pay for Perro'thlilnce 

Iowa County provides annual performance eva]m11iari� ,;itlt aU employees. Performance 
evaluations are designed to acknowledge '1'''1·�$' achieverrrerits and assist employees in 
improving their job performance. "' 1}:'.;'" 
Managers and Department Heads are responsible 
with employees whom they supervi�_e. 

annual ;6�tqfmance evaluations . ',"2� :i% 

Employee performance is evaluated,· �tlnJ.l.!tlly on e ee's date of hire. Management 
employees who were promoted into a manag'g'ffie11t.positiotl . or to October 5, 2014 will use 
their status date instead ,.of date . .  'AU employe�� .. .are .�ted on the following core 
competencies: 

• 

• 

• 

Attendance 
Job KJ:igw:]edge 
JobP€'ir01'll'lance 

• ' Cofumunicatiohatid Customer Service 
• Attitude, Profession1Jism ruialte.amwork ,,,,,,,,," ''.';;, ' " <�,;;=:, 

• Safety['�11d Following P9Jicies ��rrocedures 

In addition to the ilb()ve cor(;<.:ompetencies, management employees are evaluated on the 
following leadership coie�<;()p.IjJet'encies: 

• Coaching and Deleg�l:i�n 
• Team Leadership and Facilitating Change 

Employee's shall complete a self-evaluation and submit it to their evaluator, at least two weeks 
but not more than a month prior to the evaluation date. Failure to complete a self-evaluation is 
reflected in the performance review. Evaluators complete and review a separate performance 
evaluation with the employee. The evaluator submits the completed evaluation and status 

35 

Revised 03/30/2016 

Employment Handbook 



change form to Employee Relations before the end of the payroll week in which the evaluation 
date occurred. Employee Relations provides the status change form to Finance/Payroll. 

Status change forms are not processed until Employee Relations receives the completed 
performance evaluation review. 

Performance Factor Rating 
Step Process (Minimum- Step 1 up to Control Point-Step 6): 

Non-Management Employees: 

Employees within the step portion of the Iowa Count ucture receiving a rating of 29 
points to 45 points get a "Meets Expectations" rating, c .. J.les a pay increase to the next 
step. Employees receiving a rating of 28 points 6l-;ilelow get a "'l!ffoe not Meet Ex ectations " 
rating, which provides no step increase. Empfoye'es receiving a rathlg 46 points or more get 
an "Exceeds Expectations" rating, which resultsji'i£l pay incref!se of two 

Management Employees: 

Employees within the step p01iion o 
points to 56 points get a "Meets Exped�,1,£ns ·· 

County
"W'g�� .• Structure receiving a rating of 36 
whicff'.iiisludes a pay increase to the next 

step. Employees receiving,a r£lting of 35!'p,,oints o 
rating, which provides Jio stdp iilGrease. El'ij"to 

'-
- - - " -;-� - __ , 

, get itj�'!Does not Meet Pxpectation " 
1¥!1J'g,£1 rating of 57 points or more get 

an "Exceeds Expectations" rating, which resu 
, _ _  ,- - -- - - -- ay incr�It�'e"oftwo steps. 

All perform�fe,o:e\'aluati6�$' ,inylucl,iilg manage .. , ... ! and non-management reviews that get an 
"Exceeds,fix[J�itFittons '' ratifi!l�ded to'B'e'cUsGuss�a�hd approved by the County Administrator. 

-- -->-- �+-""- '-'-"';;_-_ _ '"-'- -->>:->. '0/ 

Pay rJ�;.1�;formanc;"?���1,toI ,�oI�t" Step � toR-i:aximum): 
->;:;::::- --::f:;)i!-":'b � "'" -

Emplqyee;'wlf�t.!'1ave reached'.: 6 ;Jl:{';;�,ceive a rating of "Exceeds Expectations" are eligible 
for Pay for Pe1'�0wance. xceeds Ex ectations" rating is 46 points or more for non-
management empl'lit��s and 57 nts or more for management employees. 

''-:R00'.?-

Employees will recei�� 
divided within 26 pay perio 

2%) performance bonus of current base rate, which will be 
!:>":plus a two (2%) base wage increase. 

When an employee is on Step 5 and receives an "Exceeds Expectations", employee will receive a 
one and a half (1 .5%) performance bonus of current base rate, which will be divided within 26 
pay periods plus a one (1  %) base wage increase off Step 6. 

The performance bonus pay will exhaust after the 26 pay periods unless employee receives an 
"Exceeds Expectations" rating at their next annual performance review. 

36 

Revised 03/30/2016 

Employment Handbook 



All pay including base wage and bonus pay cannot exceed the maximum step unless approved by 
the County Board. If an employee is near maximum, they will earn the base wage increase before 
the performance bonus pay. 

All perfo1mance evaluations including management and non-management reviews that get an 
"Exceeds Expectations" rating must be discussed and approved by the County Administrator. 

5.6 Timesheets/Reporting 
'-'-__ 

-""'''""'"

-) '' 
Timesheets are a legal source document for all payroll tnl!Is'��tfons. Timesheets serve as the 

;:-; c;; -,;,·-'- ,;:;,-,_-_c; 

legal authority to pay an employee. Timesheets also s¥J::Y:ff1'�s'v�;t4,(ication of time off, and 
provide the legal basis to grant an employee benef'i�j'+iti6fudingw�'rker's compensation as 
appropriate. It also gives verification for the "'"'ifif�dit ofworkei\ey•cmnpensation by the 
county's insurance carrier. 

All Iowa County employees, exempt and non-exe 
to record all working hours on Co�faAimesheets, w 
The information on the time records 'fri\iSfi!l9lude: 

, -_ -:-.- --' ,,--):_"':-- --

- - - - c;_:-:c;,_ 

elected offi�I�ls) are required 
ficial records of'16Lrs worked. 

• actual beginning and ending time{of,,wo'rktl�,Y'.l•• 
• actual heginni11g•:@�fe:lf · 

z;?z::,:;57-"- --

Similarly, time off sH�ilhc;l be rep 
work. It is the responsiBllit% of 
the event 1:bat+theemploye�'"2'' 
the em�lo)'ee'ii'�upei:\ris�r ma 
he/she'siliried for the erii'Jioxee. 

:�-c-: ,;;;;:- _,--
---- - ---::. -

on the cl3:!��{jrJates th�tstl6h time was taken off from 
loyee to''sI�11 a timesheet with an original signature. In 

timeshe�,t,c;!ue to absence, illness or similar condition, 
for the ee'but shall indicate on the timesheet that 

Many Blo�llltl:eld Healthc:1�gffiployee 

All employees'
'ffuiesheets sha1fili�• reviewed and initialed by their direct supervisor. Department 

heads shall sign ea�litigie shexi,�Jth an original signature. The Department Head may delegate 
such duties to another supeD:<!s'ofln his/her absence. 

·:xx;z-::·:·-�o;�',. 

For each signed timesheet, the Department Head's signature implies certification that the 
timesheet was reviewed, and to the best of his/her knowledge, represents the time sheet as a true 
and accurate record of time worked or time off. 

Submission of Time Sheets: Department Heads are required to deliver the time sheets to the 
Finance Office by 10:00 a.m. on the Monday after the pay period ends, except Bloomfield 
Healthcare and Highway. Highway Department is required to have time sheets and payroll 
interfaced by 1 :00 p.m. on the Monday following the end of the pay period and Bloomfield 

37 

Revised 03/30/2016 

Employment Handbook 



Healthcare is required to have time sheets and payroll interface by I 0:00 a.m. on the Tuesday 
following the end of the pay period. If a Department Head anticipates that time sheets will be 
late, they must call the Finance Office as soon as this is known. If an employee knows he/she 
will be absent on the Monday of the payroll week then he/she should submit the time sheet to 
his/her Department Head/Supervisor at the end of the week prior to the payroll week or prior to 
when his/her leave begins. Department Heads/Supervisor should also make arrangements for 
submitting timesheets if absent or unavailable on Monday of the payroll week. 

Fraudulent Timesheets: Iowa County considers submission of fr!;!l!dulent time sheets constitutes 
misuse of public funds. Falsifying a time sheet by failing tC)c,g[Wjtfme worked, adding time 
worked when such work was never performed, recordingo'f'tltfie on another employee's time 
sheet or by failing to accurately report time off and/on��)gf'iid�.ed time (MTO, Medical Leave 
Bank, Traditional sick leave, and compensatory ti 
fraudulent time sheets may be subject to disci · 

employment and is further subject to criminal 

·sit violatI61),.�A,n employee submitting 

monitor employees working hours for the purpo 
Various methods of monitoring may include, but are· 
ID badge access activity, County cofl1fatij.etrecords, Co 
tracking. < ;  ... --------

·-

e accuracy f>l'ti�e reporting. 
to visual obseJi¥.�!jon, review of 

ephone logs and billing, and GPS 

S.6a Flex Time: The ped()dj<: <tdjustmeI1Y<)fthe wbr!fLsq)l.edule .. !l1;.commodate the operations 
of Iowa County, or t)l.e'�d�l.l§Yd'n1i;l..,!;!djustmenft� allg���fuplQy;e�s t���.iccommodate personal 
obligations is consid� '''.flex tifutff�i�owing'fI��'tiilie is at tht!�sble discretion of the 
Department Head and/ 

Exempt Employees:;:Flex 
to anoj;herf>l.lY peri;;'a:'' ' 

. - · - ·  - ,- - .. . 
e · t15":period it is worked and cannot be can·ied 

Non-ExefupbEmployees: 
.EtlIJ:llgyees . uled 40-hours per week: Flex time must be used in 

the payroll '-'!tfelfjt is worked.tl11.d.canno /canied over the pay period or cannot be carried to 
another pay pe;lgd:;.Employees 

·,�¢hFduled less than 40-hours per week: Flex time may be used in 
the pay period it is W()r1'ed (if itc,\!.<,les not generate more than 40-hours per pay week) and cannot 
be carried to another pl.ly perJ(,)d'f/ 

5. 7 Overtime 

Non-exempt employees may receive pay for overtime hours. This will he paid at time and one 
half the hourly rate of pay for any hours worked in excess of 40 productive (physical work) 
hours per workweek. 

38 

Revised 03/30/2016 

Employment Handbook 



All non-productive hours such as holiday pay, managed time off, traditional sick leave ahdjury 
duty pay do not count towards the 40 hour work time. 

Employees ove1time hours must be pre-approved by the employee's supervisor or Department 
Head. Non-exempt employees cannot authorize any ove1time hours of work for themselves or 
any other employee. Individual departments may establish overtime work conditions which may 
waive the pre-approval requirement. 

Employees who do not comply with pre-approval of overtime hgurs may be subject to 
disciplinary action. 

5.8 Compensatory Pay 

Iowa County may provide compensatory tim�:,�fftb hourly employ���*in.non-exempt positions 
in lieu of providing overtime pay. CompensatQtY'.time will pe provide . , he rate of one and 
one half (1 Yz) hours of compensatory time offfor'eaclthouLQf�overtime w�r 

An employee may make a request f6·fi1�e;� •• supervis��•tei�f�ceive compensatory time off in lieu 
of receiving overtime pay that would;�t��f�j'§'e;.JJe reqruI�d '11Jlder the County's Overtime Pay 
Policy. Such requests must be made b1' re tlief��;,.. 'me is �9rk.ed, and must be approved in 
writing by the employee's·it\.ip¢'i,�visor. 

In recognition of th� b;e;�ti�dal differenc 
managers to promotef prgguctiv\fy • within th·. 
discretion t9:•e:st1j.hlis� staridllrds in, tKei.t.)tespecti partments for granting compensatory time 
off in lie;[;;6J'1:'p�ci'vi�lpg overtiJile,pay:< Manag�d'·rS'hall comply with the compensatory time 
standafd§��tablished iJJ''tlI�ir Depaftment He�a�:·:;;> 

Manage;: '�lR(f.flexibility 
,
lJ�o�edulirlg employee work hours to meet the operational needs of 

their respecti�e;,qe;partments. \�(qnagers.'are expected to attempt to utilize flexible scheduling 
during each wo;J<'.f�e;k in or�$� to . control ove1time pay expenses and employees' reduced 
productivity due to � · e 9i:f9�fupensatory time off. 

An employee who request' use accrned compensatory time off shall be permitted to use said 
time within a reasonable period after making the request if the use of that compensatory time 
does not unduly disrnpt the operations of the department. 

Upon termination of employment, an employee who has accrned compensatory time off will be 
paid for the unused compensatory time. 

Employees will be permitted to can-y a compensation time balance in excess of 40 hours until the 
end of the calendar quarter. Compensatory time that exceeds 40 hours at the end of the calendar 

39 

Revised 03/30/2016 

Employment Handbook 



quarter will be paid out on the following payroll. Quarterly will reflect March 31 ,  June 30, 
September 30 and December 3 1 .  It is understood that the 40 hours bank is intended solely to 
reflect the maximum allowable carryover of compensatory hours, and shall not be interpreted as 
restricting the employee's right at any time to receive pay during a normal pay period for any or 
all banked hours upon request. 

5.9 Expense Reimbursement 

All Iowa County employees may request reimbursement foi:JJ:�fel expenses and other expenses 
as authorized by their respective Department Heads ancj45,�Q,Yili�d herein. Employees shall be 
required to complete an Expense Reimbursement fopnib�fbfe'r�lfil1Jursement will be provided. 
Employees are to request reimbursement of expe Li:?oh a monthl:/:1Jl!;sis. 
AutomobileN ehicle Travel: To be eligible, 
Reimbursement for automobile/vehicle travel w1 

oyee shall hold a �hlfctc!river's license. 
at the C).lf;J;,ent year' S ms:mileage rate for 

travel directly related for actual necess!lry and reaso 
official authorized County business::gi'.9!J1!!1pting mile 
his/her normal place of employment ar�Ji:c.l't��imbursable. 

· '""�l�d travel costs ijl(l).lfred while on 
een an employee's residence and 

Mileage reimbursement will.pply be mad'.e io th���·�roplqyees .. :'iii.old a valid driver's license 
,_ ·::rn_1,,,,, __ "'<!<''' .:dho:i<i!!-:':'"X--,,- -,_ -�'\fb'i0) and have filed proof 0f · !;,(,".,, The Conn;tY wiUac.cepf!kfAl::[tificate of insurance or a copy of 

the declaration pagefJ�Jcating the;�1pount ot�pv,erage for lta:bility and an expiration date as 
proof of insurance. Tli�Z�roployee\�fproof of in'S\lfimce must be filed with the County Clerk's 
Office for eachve�icle u;6�kv.hile'6'.fi£�Q!1!1ty buJiltess. Per Iowa County's Insurance Company, 
personal aut9fu1Jbile'in�yralfa'.'�fi�i!Y;� 'iA.'r ; outit'of: ---- - - - -- - -'sloq,ooo per persqfx)'s 

$300,0QQ,per acciden��(lflily inj 
$100,000 coiubined sin�f�l,imit. 

In the event that more tllaIT;(l!'.[�':�ifgible person is traveling to the same destination, shall make 
every attempt to carpool t6'(eJ:hice travel expense. In such case, mileage shall be paid to the 
eligible person actually providing the automobile/vehicle transportation. 
Public transportation: Employees who have prior authorization shall receive full reimbursement 
for authorized travel by plane, train or bus. An employee should make every effort to locate the 
lowest and most reasonably priced transportation before authorization. Prior to departure, a 
purchase order and/or sale tax exemption certification should be obtained from the Finance 
Director. 

40 

Revised 03/30/2016 

Employment Handbook 



Meal: Actual and reasonable expense reimbursement will be allowed for meals outside Iowa 
County provided a detailed receipt is furnished. No reimbursement shall be made for the cost of 
alcohol beverages or for tips over fifteen percent (15%). Maximum amount allowed per meal, 
including tax and tip are: 

Meal Amount for In-State Travel Amount for Out-of-State Travel 
Breakfast $8.00 $10.00 
Lunch $9.00 $10.00 
Evening Meal $ 17.00 $20.99,y,,, 

Lodging: Employees shall be reimbursed for the expen,§����J�ea§onably priced hotel or motel at 
the single room rate. If employees share a room w · 'tligr Io�a':0oynty employees, a higher 
room rate would be allowed. An employee is r, to fmd the rrl'o�{•r�asonable lodging in the 
area. In the event that a significant other of anL',•• County employee'sl1.::ir�s a room, 
reimbursement shall be made only at the single''f&'�BJlate. If · County ·rs .9'iJ�ctly billed for the 
lodging expense, the above restrictiol'ls apply. Recet"" h 

· 
submitted fci't:'illl&!fldging 

expense. Lodging expenses for an efigiQleperson atte eetings or confereft�es within a 60 
mile radius of the county seat shall notl��·r�\mb),lrsed wit . rior approval of the County 
Administrator. Consideration will be giy�n,, f<.lt'tHt\'pre�ious ·gl,l,!Jodging for 
conferences/seminars/11].{)e!iilg trainings tifat,start pri�r·to,8 :00 ���Jl.nd are further than 80 miles 
from the County Co���§'e. ligible ehlPlp)"(.)e s€'gidfig ��i)Jlbtlt�ement for lodging expenses 
within a 60-mile raJ\\.[3;9fthe Cou Courtho��(.);sh�l mak� 'it'�itten request for County 

hall inclua�tJ:i.e reasons why reimbursement should be 
·. e artme'!J:!.,.Head. Request shall be attached with the 

6.1 Hours of Work 

The normal work week for niost full-time employees will be forty ( 40) hours; however this 
should not be construed as a guarantee of work. The normal schedule for most employees will 
be 8:00 a.m. to 4:30 p.m. Monday through Friday with a half (1/2) hour lunch, unless changed by 
the Department Head. Staff in Land Conservation (Department Assistant), County Clerk, 
Register of Deeds, Treasurer, Child Support and District Attorney's normal work week will be 
(35) hours. The normal schedule will be 8:30 a.m. to 4:30 p.m. Monday through Friday with a 
one (1) hour lunch, unless changed by the Department Head. 

41 

Revised 03/30/2016 

Employment Handbook 



Highway Department Employees: 

Normal Winter hours are from 7:00 a.m. to 3 :30 p.m. Monday through Friday starting the first 
full week in October through the last full week of April . 

Normal Surmner hours are from 6:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. Monday through Thursday effective the 
first full week of May tluough the last full week in September. 

Bloomfield Healthcare Employees: 

Business Office hours are from 8:00 a.m. to 4:30 p.m. Mon 

The facility is staffed 24-hours per day and scheduled 
of hours worked is outlined in Addendum A. 

A more detailed description 

Sheriffs Office Administration Office: :;;r:::w�" 
"--'� ::i')/ 

Office employees normal work week will be 3
't!��bJJ\lrs. No�mal work sclk 

a.m. to 4:00 p.m. Monday tluough Fr· ay with a hilfNO.)c"h�Wllinch. 
"""''"-,' ,<::.::::;-,- '> 

All employees need pre-approval to 
supervisor or the Department Head. 
outside of their normal 

6.2 Lunch Periods and,:Breaks 

ofth�;j,'tftmal work hours from their 
'c.; - '"' 

do noti'���ive prior authorization to work 
[lfY act1�4'.:, 

Lunch Peritld�iJ.frli}fI�oyee: W6t,
ng si'Jc��J'n10r ecutive hours are required to schedule a 

thirty 03,Q}fuiiiute ;Jripfii�h nch �Nch shoullii�f�cJ1eduled midway through employees shift. An 
employi�),;who works le�' ' µ sit'(6[,h,consecuti�i hours is not required to take a lunch period. 
An empl�y�g]§,chedule thi , y,e (35)1Hd\lJS per week is scheduled to take a one (1)  hour lunch. 
Employees a;i�ftc0uraged to titl{li, lunch �efiods away from their workstations. 

---'<<c. \":±?: - ']2�L;\'.;c 
Department Head/§ifR 
requirement. 

is required if an employee is unable to meet the 

Break Period: An employee may take a break period of no more than fifteen (15) minutes for 
every four ( 4) hours of consecutive work, except when the job requires that the employee remain 
on duty. Employees may leave their workstation for a break period. Employees who miss a 
break period may not use that time to take an e,xtended lunch period, arrive at work later than 
normal starting time, or leave work before normal quitting time. 

Lunch and break times are at the discretion of Department Head/Manager. 

42 

Revised 03/30/2016 

Employment Handbook 



6.3 Managed Time Off 

Plan Provisions 

A. General Policy 
It is the policy of Iowa County to provide employees with necessary paid time away from 
work. This Policy is implemented by means of a Managed Time Off (MTO) Plan, which 
covers paid leave previously available under the vacation, floating holiday, sick leave, 
bereavement leave, and other leave policies. 
MTO may fall into two categories: ScheduledAJflfu<1.. ff and Unscheduled Time Off. 
MTO is always subject to audit and monitoring;Ii�§P«,Ji]·� .ttbsenteeism policies. 
1 .  Scheduled Time Off 

.. . a. An employee may request o. e scheduJ<1d time off.!.isipg his/her accrued 
MTO. Such requests must be s ···"·��he employJ��s,l_)epartment Head 
or designee as f<q·dtFllcdvance as po . ; ut no later than tlliee (3) working 
days prior to the d�t�7fQt)Vhich the l ..••• off is requested. Requests to take 
scheduled time off iising accr!Ied MTO 'i£i�§ .be approved in advance by the 
emp loye�';§J?epartmerit l}ead. ot'cl�$igp.ee. • 

b. E�eej)tin emer '2'11.cies, emp16[ees are requir�d to request to use accrued MTO 
for sdh�'r.i.!Jled/ t and nreilj9al appointments in the same manner as 

• ·• 7 Ki�ferenc�.<-W�.�B� . diti6Q,}1an employee must also notify his/her 
;1.tpe1yispr a¥0�@; . .)n adva possible of a scheduled dental or medical 
appoint�eI\t. . ·· 

2. U�s�heduled Time Off 
:st:_---__ 

----: __ -_::;·:, 
a. urisc]l�duled.tfuie off is defined as an absence that has not been approved in 

advaiiC:e;.by;the employee's Depattment Head or designee. An absence shall 
be consi•tl�red unscheduled when atl employee's request to use MTO is made 
less than three (3) working days prior to the date for which time off is 
requested or where no request for time off is made. 

b. When unscheduled time off is necessary, an employee shall notify his/her 
Department Head or designee prior to the begilllling of his/her scheduled 
repmting time and within the notification time period designated by the 
Department Head. The employee shall also infmm his/her Depattment Head 
or designee of his/her anticipated date of return to work. 

43 

Revised 03/30/2016 

Employment Handbook 



c. A Department Head or designee may grant approval of a request to use MTO 
made by an employee with less than three (3) days' notice if the employee's 
absence does not negatively affect departmental workload, project completion, 
and maintenance of sufficient departmental staffing levels, or if the absence is 
deemed to be covered by the state and/or federal Family and Medical Leave 
Act ("FMLA"). Notice of unplanned FMLA leave shall be given as required 
in the County FMLA policy. 

B. Procedures 

1 .  Accrual Policy 

a. MTO accrnal commences 
prorated basis. The maxini 
accumulate is calculated fro 
employment. T�e 1.ii<iximum ann 
Schedule below. · 

of employment on a 
an employee can 

date of initial 
the Accrual 

b. MTO hours are earneli •)Jased'iiptin regular / .• I� paid, while on an approved 
FMJ.,Aci(.fua:l!fi\;d absenee)and w. e'tf�Qeivin'g'iifii' disability income (not on 
overtime hoJl's w9rked or'c'1.28.. 

atorytifu�•earned). 

On �<'ifup[oy,J�'�'1<lJ111iVers�� {late, if the employee's accrned MTO hours ''·""''""'"· eeed the· ti'iiixlln'i.i'Af •setforthfi'il,the Accrnal Schedule below, the excess 
ho all jjJ 'ttllllsferri<.Fi�J;;ctJ;i�,. employee's Medical Leave Bank in the 

pay<p�h()d. If the employee's Medical Leave Bank accrnal 
pe mkimJ,llll level at the time the excess MTO hours are to be 

•·t;ransferred, 't�., excess 'MTO hours will be deemed foifeited. MTO hours 
· 

.. 
��n�ferred t�iftflP employee's Medical Leave Bank pursuant to this section 
sHltrI!ip()t . �tjrned to the employee's MTO account. The employee Medical 

has been established to provide additional medical leave to 
employee that have reached the maximum MTO accrual permitted instead of 
simply restricting MTO accrnal, and is solely to be used during an employee's 
employment for the purposes specified. Therefore, at the time of an 
employee's te1mination or retirement, the employee shall not be entitled to 
remuneration for unused time from the Medical Leave Bank. See the section 
of this Policy regarding Medical Leave Bank for fmiher information. 

44 
Revised 03/30/2016 

Employment Handbook 



Accrual Schedule 

Accrual P11riods 
O-L99yeaJ' '"'---'-"-�· 
2 -5 years 
6- lOyears 

. 1 1 -15 years 

·��xim!1iii•A11111.rn:lA,ccrulil•· 
for Elllployl)l1S Wo�ltj11g , . 

40H011t�jpf;[��e11�'· ···· 
. .  ···· 13'6hiltifa · ··· 

! 16-20 ye¥s 288 hiluFss 
· 2r();:;c;re y���-- --- ' - -· · '· ·.· ... ·· 1fa 4dt!¥fu • '/. · .: < 

- - - - - - c:>""'':::c�-,,J (MTO granted in a particular year may be useq,as�-WI'TO r t year, even if the aggregate 
amount ofMTO exceeds the maximum accp!J�l"Jevel) 

2. Use ofMTO 

a. MTO is accrued 
pay period in w 
employment and 
approval. 

ed upon h���s-�9rk��)��d may be use bsequent to the 
arned. Enl.pl()Y-fes accrue MTO from the first day of 

crued MTG�_�p.en it is available, with advance 

b. E]C§eplin ce1'tiijn, limited'c'' 
Eilipfoyee Relati9ns Direc 
FMI5X:];i'!ll1 empldyee reque 

JJloy��,fi��Mi;fug<lJ,�IQ av 

---� 
-�

-
'°����-

<< :c_:< 
-:_y 

use of MTO is approved by the 
use is provided by law (e.g., 

ake unpaid leave will not be granted if the 

Adiliinfotrator �hhll'be notified when an employee's use of MTO 
,-- - -:-:0:, 

onseCut1ve weeks. 

ed in increments of no less than one hour. 

- :,-
e. in combination with hours worked shall not exceed the number 

employee is scheduled to work for that day. 

3 .  End of Employment Options 

Upon separation from employment with Iowa County, and consistent with the terms 
of the Iowa County Resignation Policy, the hours of accrued MTO in an employee's 
account will be paid out at the employee's CU!Tent wage rate (subject to withholding). 

45 

Revised 03/30/2016 

Employment Handbook 



Medical Leave Bank 

The County will provide a Medical Leave Bank for each eligible employee as part of its 
MTO Plan. The purpose of this Bank is to provide paid time off for long term medical needs 
associated with an employee's personal illness, or the personal illness of an eligible 
employee's family member's that are covered by this policy. 

A. Procedures 

1 .  An employee is eligible to use hours in hislh�r:zcri�a1cal Leave Bank for the same 
events which would qualify him/her to usel�t�tg'or Federal Family and Medical 
Leave (described in the Iowa County FMi��i"PbtlTu¥2" e.g., for a qualified illness, 
injury, and/or medical emergency oftll.�[�wpToyee oi'Jii's/J1er covered family member, 
or military exigencies of the empl ·it'Z.Hifr his/her cove;Jd f!fil1ily member, subject to 
approval by the Employee Relatioh . '•. �····· . 

"'-"{::-:<�,;.::,_ 
2. The Medical Leave Bartl< account m 

intermittent FMLA leave [lj't�t t!ie appropn 
approved by the Employe�;R�lifti�� pepartme 

-_-.. --
_ _ , --c;;c.-;-�;c:''.' ,_ 

for ifu'cefuployee's non
ifications have been received and 

3 .  

' ·4, 

his/h�Mt;d�::t�ii�e"Bank termittent leave if he/she is 
FMU,'\.);1)f'Sri'

'ili�'tlf$9n:tion of the Employee Relations 
certain'lili[i!'i:'<l circum;tlfuces, such as prolonged therapies , 

�r6st due to a W�kercs Co 

· ntments,'"t!�:yel due to medical treatment or symptomatic 

e three (3)-day waiting period to cover time 
'[!\ll��aLt1on time loss event. 

5. Th� ·td}l.µty reserve�;;'ifie right to require satisfactory medical documentation, which 
may in�ldd� a phyi;'.l�ifui's statement or other evidence. Unauthorized use of time 
accrued in 'ifrl'l:i�1!!J'll'Q'yee's Medical Leave Bank may result in loss of pay for the 
duration of the'efi{ployee's absence, and may also be grounds for disciplinary action 
or termination of employment. 

6. The County may require the employee to provide a certificate of recovery from a 
State of Wisconsin licensed physician approved by the County. 

46 

Revised 03/30/2016 

Employment Handbook 



B. Maximum Accumulation 

An employee may accumulate a maximum 480 hours in his/her Medical Leave Bank. 
Once an employee's balance reaches 480 hours, no additional time will be credited to the 
employee's Bank until the balance falls below the 480-hour maximum. 

C. Time Off Without Pay 

I .  If an employee's Medical Leave Bank is exhau�t\lH)',Sihe must use available MTO 
prior to requesting time off without pay. Ti. f without pay is not permitted, 
unless authorized by State or Federal FML�,'.· " 1!1JL�d by other laws (e.g., ADA), or 
when the employee has the prior writte a1jtli6rizi\tiQl:\ .of the Department Head and 

''0�§�1;� Employee Relations Director. ',<;�:;L" 
2. MTO does not accrue when an e ee is absent from 0o;k::y;ithout pay. MTO 

does accrue when using time in his/h�j.3(" "e Bank. 

3 .  Except as provided by 
insurance premiums when 

4. Separation,FrqitJ.iEt!lp!()Yment 
' ' " " � ' '  

The emp!Oye-e ,MedicaJ ;Leave as been to provide additional 
meqj�al leavefq elllPloyeei, t)1at hav .ched the maximum MTO accrual permitted 

c:'itlst�' simply' tefittfothlg 'MTq a� }Mai, and is solely to be used during an 
mployee' �ffigloyifreht for the pfil](_)se� specified. Therefore, at the time of an 

''.!llllPloyee's tefilTiinatiorr\{)r, retiremeht, the employee shall not be entitled to 
'l-timyneration foi'fltiti�ed tifu�.fr9m the Medical Leave Bank, and no residual or post
eni�l�:Ylllent wage iJW��&�nefit �Wall be paid to the employee for unused Medical Leave. 

Administrative Gnille · 

A. Participation 

All regular, qualifying, current and newly-hired employees working an average of twenty 
(20) hours or more per week shall participate in the MTO Plan on a prorated basis, i.e. 
employees will be paid at their normal rate of pay for MTO leave taken, based on the 
number of hours normally worked in a workweek. 

B. Vacation Balance Conversion 

47 

Revised 03/30/2016 

Employment Handbook 



Vacation balances that exist at the time this Policy takes effect shall be converted to 
MTO hours in the following manner: Vacation balances shall be converted into MTO 
hours at 100% of their cunent hourly value. New MTO hours shall be added to the 
balance pursuant to the limits and rates established in this Policy based upon an 
employee's years of service. 

C. Sick Leave Balances At Time of Adoption 

1 .  At the time of the MTO Policy's adoption, an emp ·<ee's existing sick leave shall be 
locked in a personal Sick Leave Bank, to be us ualifying events due to illness 
and medical appointments or qualified Sta deral FMLA leave. This pre-
existing Sick Leave Bank is not the sam _ c<iical Leave Bank. Pre-existing 
Sick Leave Bank refers to the sick !ell.Ve enefit ·��file and accrued by qualified 
employees prior to, but not after, th6' fffiplementation o MTO Plan. Sick leave 
shall not be earned after the MTO 'Pl@is implemented. 

2. Employees who are eli · le for retit·erri§i:i,t,• Wisconsin Jj);ement System 
regulations and who ele . �e!�re are autlil'!h , to receive a pay��t of their Sick 
Leave Bank at retiremenf;.,,,,"th�''e�tent that";t\J.(!,.,qonsistent with County contracts 
and/or policies in effect at ill��i!Il� 's"i�g£ e.ave ,,,;-�$, �il.med and banked. Said banked 
sick leave wi!Lb,e pajc[ out at tit"·' . ploy" rly �<!'g;;;at the time of retirement. 

DePil.ili:fil�J'l.t;ll!f!nagemelJ.t'will He;respons· or maintaining records that document the 
���'f6��]� 'aB.li·�e,!1ials. of employe�s'jfetJ.!l. . for MTO. A standard form, "Request for 
'J[jfue Off," shalllr�21,i�.ed to'il.;:qount for �iill�cheduled or unscheduled time off. 

E. Fl��tlq�.J:Ioliday B:i���� At Tifu��of Adoption 

F. 

, ,  '"�' �I'':" -��-::§s� 
Any floati[��.?liday �llUinces remaining when this Policy 1s adopted shall not be 
converted to M'lj'@�. 

Employees have sole responsibility for verifying the accuracy of the accrual-balance 
reporting. Employees are encouraged to verify balances bi-weekly and immediately 
report any discrepancies in writing to the Payroll Department. 

48 

Revised 03/30/2016 

E mployment Handbook 



G. Implementation 

The Medical Leave Bank will be implemented at the same time as the initial 
implementation of the Managed (Paid) Time Off Plan. 

H. Interpretation 

This policy does not create a contract. The County reserves the right to modify, interpret, 
and apply this policy, in its discretion and judgment. 

6.4 Holidays 

New Year's Day 
Good Friday 
Memorial Good 
Independence pay 
Labor Day •.• 

""" 
If any County c.elebr!JJ��< Ii ft'aJls on SdfiU(ly, tllfl'}J!i'J'wfog ��lfctay shall be deemed the 
holiday, and ifthe h51f4�Y falls �iii��turday, th�j�eceding Friday shall be declared the holiday. 
In the event the Christititi§�ye hol;<'J.iy falls on a'ilitµnday, the previous Friday shall be declared 
the holiday.,,lllitVt;;t;yent c'"'' iJl.a Sattlra�y, the following Monday shall be declared 
the holi<:l,(ly;U'f;;�f';';;; ' . . .. .. . 

Employe� •we expected t'6'1Vork th et pefore and after the holiday, unless they have scheduled 
time off or proved abs�flcii·from t j)'J)epartment Head. Employees who have an 
unexcused ab .. ,t;,the day beft/'.re and/or 

... <lfter the holiday may not receive holiday pay and may 
be subject to dis�iPJIJ,\<tfY action,,/,·1f· an employee is absent on a holiday they are scheduled to 
work, the employee Wil)'2oe reg]!i�ed to provide a doctor's note for the absent holiday. The 
employee needs to provitfe,t£1�.o6ctor' s note to his/her Department Head/Supervisor on his/her 
next scheduled shift. Failur;g;to provide a doctor's note will result in loss of holiday pay. 
Employee will not allowed to use MTO or Traditional Sick Leave (for employees hired before 
January 1 ,  2013) when absent on a holiday. 

Regular Part time employees are eligible to receive holiday pay on a pro-rated basis. The 
determination of holiday pay will be based upon the number of hours the part-time employee 
worked. For example, a part-time employee working 15  hours a week would be eligible to 
receive 3 hours of holiday pay. 

49 

Revised 03/30/2016 

Employment Handbook 



In cases where an employee is required to work on a holiday due to unforeseeable circumstances, 
or required to work on a holiday as part of their normal work schedule, the employee shall 
receive holiday pay for the holiday plus time and one half the for the actual hours worked. 
Employees who work on the "Observed" holiday will only receive straight pay for actual hours 
worked. 

6.5 Jury Duty 
,,;:;;c.;:,:<). 

Employees who are called for jury duty on a regularly sche 
the C01mty at their regular hourly wage. Employees will 

uL�working day( s ), shall be paid by 
.m:cany jury duty pay earned to the 

County Treasurer. Employees are required to supply �l'tg��ury duty summons, or the 
subpoena and a copy of the check submitted to the'��bnty Treasrtt�t.tp their Depmiment 
Head/Supervisor. The copies will be forward,tQ'�]i�Employee Relat!'op� Office to be filed in the 
employee's persmmel file. Employees who wdfk�Jate afternoon or nightii;bift may only have to 
pay Iowa County a portion of their jury duty pay'd&p�Rdi . e length c.if·t�e scheduled for 
jury duty. · ··· ··· · '<' :'' 

Employees are to work any of their re 
will be paid for travel time that occurs 

uled ho�f�l�!!t do not conflict with jury and 
ed workiligfiqurs. 

6.6 Voting Leave 

· · s �I1titrnatp'.v6te'at'a� �le<c,tio "=cfntitled to be absent from work while the 
for a pel'i(>§,J10t fo e�ceed three'(B�!:<;iolrsecutive hours to vote. The employee must 

notify hi�fu:er Departm�ii¥fjli d of''§�p:ervisor b�f&� Election Day of the intended absence. 

Any employ e a;··a�.election official under s. 7.30 of the Wisconsin State 
work to attend to election duties. 

work to vote or to serve as an election official will not 
r Iowa County pay purposes. 

6.7 Volunteer Fire and EMS Leave 

In compliance with Wisconsin Statutes, Iowa County provides for any employee who is a 
volunteer fire fighter, emergency medical technician, first responder or mnbulance driver for a 
volunteer fire department of fire company, a public agency, or nonprofit corporation shall be 
allowed to be late for or absent from work if the lateness or absence is due to the employee 

50 

Revised 03/30/2016 

Employment Handbook 



responding to an emergency that begins before the employee is required to report to work and if 
the employee complies with all of the following requirements: 

• By no later than 30 days after becoming a member of a volunteer fire department 
or fire company or becoming affiliated with an ambulance services provider, the 
employee must submit to his/her Department Head a written statement signed by 
the chief of the volunteer fire department or first company or by the person in 
charge of the ambulance services provider notifying Iowa County that the 
employee is a volunteer fire fighter, emergency · edical technician, first 
responder, or ambulance driver for a volunt�, department or fire company, a 
public agency, or a nonprofit corporation ' itten statement will be 
forwarded to the Employee Relations U inclusion in the employee's 
personnel file. : 

• When dispatched to an emergengy;tbf employee e every effort to notify 
his/her Department Head or supetYisor that the employee'' 
absent from work due to the empI6)'°�e.respo11c:Jjj!g to the em 
notification cannot besmade due to the'.ex ·'·•<;'circumstances o emergency or 
the inability of the erl\.'''''Pt: 

.• 

explaining ��y p�i?r notili 
• Whenlate'Or abseiitfrom wor 

must �f8\'i!le, upoJff�quest, a 
respondirig.fa '\n erri.erg,ency at th 

''"2slli�l��K and ffniii;gfthe'FtlsR(\11�.e to · 
,, , - � "<J':it:���?---- - -

· Department Head, submits to the 
. .,yolunteer fire department or fire 

· :of the aillb;ul'\nce services provider 

::'l�Jo an emergency, the employee 
statement'fertifying that the employee was 
e of the lateness or absence and indicating 

emergency. 

shall seek appi;pval from the Depmiment Head/Supervisor when requesting to 
leave work io'���pond to an eii\�tgency� ·· ·  • 

��:t�iJ:,: -- -,.. 
When the employet\t1>.�tatus as ., · 'ember of a volunteer fire department of fire company or as an 
affiliate of an ambul:ill�,�:;s,erv · tovider changes, including termination of that status, the 
employee must notify hisiJ:C artment Head of that change in status. The Department Head 
is responsible for notifyingthe Employee Relations Department. 

Hours missed from work due to an employee's status as a volunteer frrefighter or emergency 
medical technician as described above will be considered as hours worked for Iowa County pay 
purposes. 

51 

Revised 03/30/2016 

Employment Handbook 



6.8 Family and Medical Leave 

Iowa County will grant family and medical leaves of absence in accordance with the Family and 
Medical Leave Act (FMLA) and Wisconsin Family Medical Leave Act (WFMLA). 

Please refer to Family and Medical Leave Act policy located on the website for more details. 

6.9 Military Leave 

Iowa County complies with the Uniformed Services Emplg�m�flf and Reemployment Rights Act 
(USERRA) for any employee performing duty on a vollln{�'d±�involuntary basis in a uniformed 
service under competent authority, which includes . tlv�;duty: �qtiYity duty for training, initial 
active duty for training, inactive duty training, ai;i: '-time N ati�haf§µard duty. Employees 
called to military duty are required to fill out a'F;�LA/NON FMLA L'eii.¥<lJlequest form and 
shall submit copies of their military orders to tlfef�filployee R lations 6ep@lment. 

Employees shall be granted military.l(lll,ye withou;,;�'£7. 
in the orders, in accordance with appl'icaglg laws. Eligi 
is completed is also determined in accof4�rtde''W.i1J:l applica 

eriod of mili�.J�:.�ervice outlined 

Continuation ofBenefa�;;c=i;'�<-;·S.:ounty wfii8gntinue f,Qj)R<iY,�ny p · ,1gn of group health insurance 
and other Iowa Coun,tyJ�sttran�epremiumscfor coye,nrge'th.llttit..\Vii.�'fesponsible for paying 
immediately prior tcl'tQ:¢;;1eave. MI� and/or \i��a'tioff and si�k'Te'ave shall accrue during military 
leave up to twelve ( 12)'w�i�s per ••· · j , 
Iowa COl))l.ty�ff(ollo\V alllr'§' ine.s :�u��pplicable laws with regard to Wisconsin 
State Retfrement. 

6.10 Gcnerai&ersonal Leave 6fAbsence 

In the event an emp[dy(le has e)(fiti�sted all applicable paid leave and state and federal FMLA, or 
who is not eligible for FMLf.., iftid needs to take a leave; the employee's Department Head may 
grant a request for GenerallPetsonal leave not to exceed 90 days. Department Heads must 
consult with Employee Relations. 

Employees requesting such leave are required to fill out a FMLA/NON-FMLA Leave Request 
Form. Employees need to indicate on the form the reason for the requested leave and the 
anticipated beginning date and duration of the leave. Forms must be submitted to the Employee 
Relations Office. 

52 

Revised 03/30/2016 

Employment Handbook 



Iowa County has the right if applicable; to request supporting documentation from a physician. 
If an employee is granted leave due to his/her own physical condition, an employee will be 
required to provide Iowa County a return to work slip form, prior to returning to work. 

Employees are required to use all paid time-off available before any unpaid time is granted. 
Employees on an unpaid leave are responsible for the entire cost of insurance premiums. 

6.11 Suspension of Operations 

It is the policy of Iowa County to keep all services, offic 
public to the fullest extent possible. 

Please reference the Suspension of Operations 

6.12 Employee Loss and Damage Policy 

In the event that an Iowa County e�f 0'2��· 

paiiments open and available to 

unforeseeable health or hazardous mate essential functions of their 
job, the County Admini�trat°i�.�ay provl 

\ ,•l�Ji�.1% the employees. 

In the event that an IQtva County eh)ployee nll'J����jl}Jff'for'pefl��al clean-up or "to refresh", 
Iowa County will alfrny·e111ployees,tq use the nr· "County facilities: Health and Human 
Services Building, Bloorrit"i�!d He_�Jt!lca,1·e and/o "ghway Department on paid time. 

All oth9J.����p1lBh1'.t1JjJRis s�bt�ftpeed1.o b� \\Pp£� .. . by the County Administrator . 
.:.�:< . , ·c�:;;:c; � 

. •w 

7.1 Wisconsin R:ff��llient 

Iowa County participat���lt• :;Wisconsin Retirement System paying 50% of the total 
contribution, with the exce n of non-represented employees who are classified as a Protective 
occupation employee. 

To qualify for participation in the WRS, employees initially employed by a WRS employer prior 
to July 1 ,  201 1  must work or be expected to work 600 hours within the first year of employment 
with the County and be employed for at least one year. If initially employed by a WRS employer 
on or after July 1 ,  201 1 , employee must work or be expected to work at least two-thirds of what 
is considered full-time employment defined as a minimum of 1 ,200 hours and be employed for a 
minimum of one year. Once considered eligible, coverage is mandatory. 

53 

Revised 03/30/2016 

Employment Handbook 



Employer and Employee contribution rates are established annually by the Department of 
Employee Trust Funds. 

7.2 Health Insurance 

Iowa County provides health insurance through the State of Wisconsin Group Health Insurance 
Program. Iowa County participates in the Local Deductible Plan. Eligibility is based upon an 
employee qualifying for the Wisconsin Retirement System. 

The availability of health insurance plans and the applica),f 
sharing formulas are solely determined by the County;,.; •.•. . 

·c:::;;57 notice. 

ealth insurance premiums cost 
re subject to changes without 

The Health Insurance Contribution Level Chai:{1,hiticates the average entage of the four 
qualified plans (Unity Community, Dean Healtli��ll'\11, Physicians Plus an 
the County will pay based upon the number ofh�@�:.@ emplQ'yee was hired '<0�---'::-�" :����:;:;c: ,_,-
Employee premium contribution 

Level 4 

Level 5 

are subjecttt�)�hange every year. 

At Least 48 Hours but 
Less Than 60 Hours 

At least 40 Hours but 
Less than 48 

May or May not be eligible 
for Health Insurance, 

based on WRS eli ibilit 
Less than 20 Hours 

May or May not be eligible 
for Health Insurance, 

based on WRS eligibility 

54 

Pef£gntage of Premium 
,,,Paid'l)y the County based 

44 :_�j'.>JJ the average premium 
·•9cost of qualified plans 

85% 

66% 

56% 

50% 

County may pay as little as 
25% of the lowest 

qualifying plan 

Revised 03/30/2016 

Employment Handbook 



Employees who are WRS Retirement eligible may continue their ETF health insurance at their 
own expense at the time of their retirement. 

Qualified employee's coverage is effective the 1st of the month after 30 days of employment. 

Employees may elect upon initial enrollment, during "It's Your Choice" Open Enrollment and/or 
within 3 0 days of a qualifying event. 

7.3 Dental Insurance 

Iowa County offers full-time and eligible part-time empl§�e�i'\¥!10 work 20 hours or more per 
week the opportunity to enroll in Group dental covexl;\gci�through0 lta Dental. The County 
agrees to pay one hundred percent (100%) ofth50:f��single cove1' . . remium and eighty five 
percent (85%) of the Low family coverage pr(!ffit'fi;7 for dental insur�rtc�,�Jhe County offers a 
High plan for both single and family coverage. loyees are responsibleifor,the difference in 
premium cost between the High and Low Dental p - -

__ ___ , ___ _ 

Employees may elect upon initial 
event. 

Level 2 

Level 3 

Level 4 

'-c--.-cc· 

after 30 days of employment. 

.ormally Worked in 
ay Period 

64 or More Hours 
At Least 60 Hours but Less 

Than 64 Hours 
At Least 48 Hours but Less 

Than 60 Hours 
At least 40 Hours but Less 

than 48 

55 

. at the time of a qualifying 

Percentage of Premiums 
Paid by the County for Low 

Dental Plan. County will 
pay the same premium cost 

towards the High Dental 
Plan 

Single: 1 00% 
Family: 85% 
Single: 75% 
Family: 60% 
Single: 60% 
Family: 45% 
Single: 50% 
Family: 40% 

Revised 03/30/2016 

Employment Handbook 



7.4 Life Insurance 

Iowa County participates under the Wisconsin Public Employers Group Life Insurance Program 
through The Department of Employee Trust Funds. Eligibility is based upon emollment in the 
Wisconsin State Retirement System. Iowa County offers Basic Coverage which provides a 
beneficiary with a benefit equal to an employee's annual salary at the time of death. The County 
pays an additional twenty percent (20%) of the employee's Basic premium. Additional levels of 
coverage for employees and coverage for spouse and dependents is available. 

Qualified employees' coverage is effective the 1st of the mo11 flowing 30 days from the date 
of hire. 

Employees wishing to enroll after the first thirty (30) Jgyment will be required to 
complete an Evidence ofinsurability Applicatiol1..to''.determine e{igl\5tli.ty. Employees may emoll 
or increase employee's coverage within thirtyS'.J.QJd�ys of a qualifyhlg�yl'.nt. 

7.5 Vision Insurance 

Iowa County offers a voluntary 
per week. 

Qualified empJo,yet�s'. cp]ver:ige 
employment. 

Employees m!\Y elect cmret!fge up6I1 i1)iJtial, 
days of!\ ���lff�l�g��ye11t. 

,'"._'_,.,�.:�.> �:::, i>'• 
-,�-:;::;:;: __ 

to eili�l()X�es who work 20 hours or more 
II premiliBh, ., 

open emollment and within thirty (30) 

Health, Dental, 
.flf�5\11d Visio ranee allows for employees to enroll their Domestic Pminer 

and his/her children'lltfb,t; cov "'' '' iplan. A Domestic Partnership needs to be established to 
enroll eligible Domestic 

Information regarding Domestic Pminership can be obtained in the Employee Relations Office. 

7. 7 Disability Insnrance 

Iowa County offers employees who work 20 hours or more per week the opportunity to 
pmiicipate in a voluntary shmi term and long te1m disability insurance plan. Employees are 
responsible for paying the full premium. 

5 6  

Revised 03/30/2016 

Employment Handbook 



Qualified employees' coverage is effective the 1st of the month following thirty (30) days of 
employment. 

Employees wishing to enroll after the first thirty (30) days of employment will be required to 
complete and Evidence oflnsurability form to determine eligibility. 

7.8 Deferred Compensation 

Employees may voluntarily participate in the Wisconsin De 
provides an opp01tunity for employees to invent money 

The amount defeJTed reduces income taxes in one oftw 

Compensation Program, which 
mental retirement income. 

e-tax or after-tax (Roth). 
The before-tax Wisconsin DefeJTed CompensatiB\tpPtion allows e 
invest before-tax dollars, meaning you pay taJf(:'�iifilter in life when yo 

e employees to save and 
a distribution. The 

after tax Wisconsin Deferred Compensation Rdt� option appli�s income 
as they are invested in your account, but neither tlie£:ontri ''6rts nor the int 
taxed later in life when the employe�" s a distributi6!E 

Participation in the Deferred Compens 

7.9 Long Term CareHnsurance 
. . 

- - - -- -- - ---

State of Wisconsin Depilrttrii;!lt ofJ3ntP.l9yee T und has offered an optional long-term care 
benefit to Stlltl:;�ajigJJniversity cpi11[lloylig� i:u1c! ann 

..
..

.. 
ts. This voluntary benefit is now being 

-�<i'j:::;::;::;:;;;;:yo:co·c::;-:,::; '-':--> -�;_< _'-'/ "<;';"i:,+>><-- s::;:/i#} 

made tplp:Wa County,'J3111ployeb§ 111ay voltinta�iJyJ?afticipate in Long Term Care Insurance for 
them S'etf''�nd their eligible�{a,mily filei)lbers. '".S.f"' 

7.10 Flexible Sp�fiding Accouftt 
--}_:7?:, "":{57:-

------

Employees may volu�tlfrf!X,,P.�f6ipate in a Flexible Spending Account for healthcare and/or 
dependent care in order to"f��uce taxable income. A designated amount (determined by the 
employee) is deducted from each paycheck, reducing their taxable income by that amount. New 
employees have 30 days to enroll in the Flexible Spending Account. All eligible employees shall 
be given notice of annual enrollment opportunities. Once the plan year begins, the employee's 
election is irrevocable and cannot be changed, unless there is a qualifying event. 

Amount balances that remain in the account at the end of the plan year are forfeited, so 
employees should take care in planning their allocations to the accounts. 

57 
Revised 03/30/2016 

Employment Handbook 



Qualified employees' coverage is effective the I'' of the month after 30 days of employment. 
Healthcare Flexible Spending Account: Employees may allocate money pre-tax for 

reimbursement of out-of-pocket medical expenses incuITed by the employee or the employee's 
family during the plan year. 
Maximum Contribution level for Healthcare Flexing Spending Account is up to $2,550 for 2016 
and is adjusted for inflation in subsequent years. 

Dependent Care: The pre-tax contributions can be useg,li:)cpay for work-related eligible 
child (under 13  years old) and dependent care expenses in���Cffl)y the employee during the plan 
year. An eligible dependent may also include your merit!illY,{9'�physically disabled 
spouse/child/dependent that is residing in the home,,whg�l�'�i�1�:2\o care from themselves. It 
may also be used for adult day care for senior citid""tfependent;t!fa{ reside in the home such as 

-j' '<<--<�" parents or grandparents. · ······ 

-, .;-c �': �{;-iS--Maximlun Contribution level for Dependent Car .'.�2.warried 
is up to $5,000 per plan year. and filing ;e$ara 
$2,500 per year. 

filing jofritl�:gf a single parent 
e maximum 26�tJ:iJ:mtion is up to 

tax-free basis. Premium�·1":m onl 
Salary Red.irec.til.mior InsU't'" 

�·p1'.errlimnS'(healt11, dental, and vision) on a 
on:-talx basis ifthe employee returns the 

- " " "'"'"'"' '"" --

COBRA covei�ge�j§ provided t6·1;�parating employees who qualify, based upon federal COBRA 
regulations. ,�--- - 'hf!>> 

Employees may be entitlg�!<\,(:\OBRA continuation rights which allow the employee to continue 
health and dental insurance'aTgroup rates at their own expense if specific events occur, such as 
termination, resignation, layoff, etc. In addition, former dependents of employees, including 
separated, divorced, Medicare-eligible spouses and children, or adult dependent children may 
continue health and/or dental insurance coverage at 102% of group rates but also at their own 
expense. 
Employees enrolled in Flex Spending are also entitled to COBRA Continuation rights. 

58 

Revised 03/30/2016 

Employment Handbook 



7.13 Benefit Payout 

An employee who terminates their employment and provides timely notice per the Resignation 
Policy will receive pay for all accrned and unused MTO and compensatory time on the date of 
termination. Individuals who do not provide adequate notice will not receive an MTO payout. 
Employees who are involuntarily terminated for disciplinary reasons are not eligible to receive 
pay for accrned but unused MTO. 

Employees who retire from Iowa County and are eligible to receive a Wisconsin Retirement 
Fund ammity will receive pay for accrned and unused MTO, 'tional Sick Time and 
compensatory time. 

7.14 Employee Assistance Program 

Iowa County offers an Employee Assistance Pfograrri for all full-time emp ,ye,es and those part
time employees who are regularly scheduled to wdrk':ef,Q or m6tc•hours per if�t�1,The program is 
offered to help employees when diftJ,"' Th��t;\�;i��rvice is free of cliilt1e and is 100% 
confidential. 

7.15 Worker's Compens'ttti<rn1' 1;. 
"-"'---" - - - -_-,_- -c" 

Employees who exp;�l;��e.an injd�y-or illness 
State ofWiscgmi11 Workef:s;c;omp�{IS!ltion ben 
Compen�iifi�J'i�pt\y�}�)lt� as i�eq\lil'�cfby'Worke,r's .pensation statutes and regulations. Iowa 
Count)' ;�s;�i'� ThirdP'li.�;;�dmini�t£<;ttor to adffii;�iyt�; its Worker's Compensation benefit. 

Employe�kilJI�!o adhere t�'i].�follo�il1g procedures as it relates to a workplace injury or illness: 
��· 

• '!31\i.!'loyees are re j\ jred to �otify their supervisor immediately of the injury; 
• EmplQ'yi;;.e, supe · r, and any witnesses are requested to fill out a First Report of 

Injury"'Ge� · 
• Supervisor•t..\\.. uired to notify and provide the First Report of Injury to the 

County Clerk and Employee Relations Office 
• County Clerk or Employee Relations is required to submit the First Report of 

Injury to the County's Third Party Administrator for Worker's Compensation 
msurance. 

Eligibility for benefits while receiving Worker's Compensation benefits will be based on the 
employee's leave status under Federal FMLA, Wisconsin FMLA, and/or County General Leave 
of Absence. 

59 

Revised 03/30/2016 

Employment Handbook 



At year end, the Employee Relations Office submits a SummaTy of Work-Related Injuries and 
Illnesses to the State of Wisconsin. 

SECTION 8: WORKPLACE POLICIES 

8.1 Harassment, Discrimination and Retaliation 

Iowa County is connnitted to provide a work environment thatj)lJree of discrimination, and 
unlawful harassment. Federal and State law prohibits empl . Atcc§'J;:;� discrimination on the basis of 
race, color, religion, creed, sex, age, disability, national p ' sexual orientation, or any other 
characteristic protected by Federal or State law. Amo · hibitions is the harassment of 

""2!/!!:> 

fellow employees. Actions, words, jokes, or C0lll!11,f;nt;; ased on'a�i1��ividual's gender, race, 
ethnicity, age, religion, or any other legally protect¢d�haracteristic 'gfif'9rc.ed by the Federal and 
State equal rights laws will not be tolerated. A9;cordingly, Iowa Couhty;:c";. ommitted to 
vigorously enforcing this harassment, discrimin�tl�n;.and re(<\fo1Jion policy I levels within 

'- ' ' "' ' '  "'' '' ' 

the County. . . .  0•0 •• ;:  
'''"O:�"""" ' 

<'<::::'::""' 

While.1l.tCfoi'.1lls of Iifila�s!l1ent, di§c;!'µnination, .::9.;g-etaliation are prohibited by the County, 
sexual har�ssment warrarlts;special"'ifil·· ion. Se;��] harassment includes unwelcome sexual 
advances, requests for sexu�lfavors, a er verbal or physical conduct of a sexual nature. 

*The followin;ex'amples are i�l�l'trative and should not be constrned as all-inclusive: 

Verbal.- sexual irnm6ha(i,�ugg�s��e comments, insults, threats, jokes or derogatory comments 
based on sex; sexual prdpJ§ftfJiii or advances; and pressure for sexual favors. 

Nonverbal: displaying of sexually suggestive or derogatory pictures, cartoons or drawings; 
making suggestive or insulting noises, leering, whistling, or making obscene gestures. 

Physical: touching, pinching, squeezing, patting, brnshing against the body; impeding or 
blocking normal work or movement; coercing sexual intercourse; or assault; or, any attempt to 
engage in the above conduct. 

Violations of the policy in the area of sexual harassment occur when: 

60 

Revised 03/30/2016 

Employment Handbook 



(1) submission to such conduct is made a condition of employment; or 

(2) submission to or rejection of such conduct is used as the basis for employment related 
decisions such as promotion, performance evaluation, pay adjustment, discipline, 
work assignment, etc. ;  or 

(3) such conduct otherwise interferes with work performance by creating an intimidating, 
hostile, or offensive working enviromnent. 

Any employee who feels he/she has been subjected to sexy 
matter innnediately with his/her Department Head or ee Relations Director. 

It is the affirmative duty of each employee to coop 
of alleged sexual harassment. Furthermore, Io,. 
retaliating or discriminating in any way again 
sexual harassment suffered by him/her or any ot 

with ancif\qt,iJnpede any investigation(s) 
ty prohibits'·ail� epployee from 

All complaints of alleged sexual har!!�st):ient will be pt' nd thoroughly :n'e�tigated, 
including anonymous complaints, ancf\!i<'>lafions of the p 'll be treated as serious 
disciplinary infractions. Departmental l!�ads Will�i)Jlmediat� ing forth any available 
evidence of sexual harassmentJo the Empl()yee Rel'atfons Pirec o · The Employee Relations 
Director and Departn:Je£filr1Fl��1f;wJH work together:to'd'�aI�£fe

,
ctiv y with the harassment once 

such behavior has b���;�;ought.t5filteir attentlon.; ·�y em]l1�yee who violates the policy 
. •  

..,,, ges anothe�tR. violate the policy will be subject to 
'!�;)Ya County recognizes that false accusations 

60/those accused and intentional false 
Policy. 

Iowa CowityJwjH provide pgf.f.o�ic ma . .. ment education and employee awareness programs 
that emphasi:ig.ib.f;l.,County' s �op\l't'.m for.th� seriousness of this harassment issue. 

8.2 Respectful Workplli��· 

Iowa County strives to maintain a workplace that fosters mutual respect and promotes 
harmonious, productive working relationships. The County prohibits any behavior that is 
discourteous and demeaning to others. Disrespectful behavior may include, but is not limited to 
the following: 

• Name calling or nicknames that may be offensive; 
• Refusing to communicate or speak with another individual; 
• Offensive verbal, visual, or physical conduct; 

61 

Revised 03/30/2016 

Employment Handbook 



• Gossiping about another individual; 
• Repeating negative comments about others; 
• Jokes that are demeaning 
• "Bullying" behavior; and 
• "Cyber" bullying. 

Iowa County expects that everyone will act responsibly to establish a pleasant and friendly work 
environment. If an employee feels that they have been subject to any form of disrespectful 
behavior or bullying, the employee should report that conduct · s/her immediate supervisor or 
Department Head, or Employee Relations Director. 

All employees should notify their supervisor regardingL.,.· . ectful behavior that they 
witness or are told another person received. "<§7 

The County will investigate all concerns in a £\)tlfldential manner. r, the County will not 
allow the goal of confidentiality to be a deterrenffo.;m effectiv(! investiga · . ., .'+ Appropriate 
corrective action, up to and including termination:zili.�y ... be t�e�iagainst any';�rfi"NJpyees engaging 
in disrespectful behavior. The corr 4"•·. ction issue"d' .. wjJ![b"�'based on the sev1'!Ry of the 
conduct. 

; -- ---'-"-- -,-_--

8.3 Employee Possession''lifWeapon . - · -
- --

Iowa County reco�iiesi;tlJ.�Jt employees have t ht to obtain a license to possess and carry a 
concealed we on. The CailJity prbfub.its emplo from possessing dangerous weapons (as 
that term.is; isc6i1�fili§f�tUf���§';;��9.2 ) while they are working for the County 

nd 0�c'opttof emp!dyb'Jept, subject to the following provisions and 
' ----"""· �::+ 

An employee .. ;�'Y calTy or sto ... � dangei16lis weapon in the employee's personal vehicle, 
regardless of w�tK!.<�,the vehic�1rs used in the course of employment or whether the vehicle is 
driven or parked o�.;JSf" rt o�etl or utilized by the County. 

e Hy not possess a dangerous weapon in a County vehicle. 
• The prohibition from possessing dangerous weapons during work time does not 

apply to any Iowa County Sheriffs Office - Law Enforcement Officers or other 
authorized individuals if required as a condition of employment with Iowa 
County. 

A knife that is used in the normal course of County business, such as a butcher knife used for 
food preparation, a box cutter used to break down boxes, or a common pocket knife, is exempt 
from this policy. 

62 

Revised 03/30/2016 

Employment Handbook 



8.4 Workplace Violence 

Iowa County is committed to promoting a safe environment for its employees. The County will 
work with its employees to maintain a work environment free from violence, threats of violence, 
intimidation, and other disruptive behavior. 

Violence, threats, intimidation, and other disruptive behavior in the workplace will not be 
tolerated. All reports of incidents will be taken seriously and will be dealt with appropriately. 
Individuals who commit such acts may be removed from the prt1.mises and may be subject to 
disciplinary action, criminal penalties, or both. Any situatio <ih gives the perception that a 
danger may exist should be reported. Such situations or may include but are not 
limited to the following: 

• Oral or written statements, gestun::s, Qtexpressions 
indirect threat of physical harn;if' · · · 

• Possession of firearms or other erous weapons while 
requirement of your employment v{ilt�l•IpwaQ()Unty. 

• Threatening or intimidating behavior clt(act§B'f�iolence against 
,_ - - - - - -- - ----- - mployee, 

contractor, vendor, viS\t!.)r (j!'pt}ier individ\.{a�rrresent in a County facility or 
property. °' . .  • 

· "> 

Employees are responsil{lfaf([r�teporting dri.Y:rincidenf§·or situati�ii.lllwhich cause them personal 
concern or concern fc!tt#�0�:tl�[§�d well-belriggf\{)fh�r�� e'{�iJ. iµ the absence of an expressed 
threat. Employees sh0Wfi.immedi'°'""1y report ��{behavior th"eyhave witnessed or heard 
discussed by others that!'"•• 

. . .  
Aii reports will be 

investigated �!}qia.�s(lssed fo 
-- - ""' --- -

Empld§ei.¥should repoftI'�y thr or intirnl g behavior or cause for concern to their 
Supervisor,"Jlepaiiment He'a]:}J:<:mp . ·�tl•Relations Director or County Administrator 
immediatelf2Jmmediately is''o!;l[ined d�f���n as it was heard or expressed. 

Violations will ll:!adJo disciplin�,action up to and including tennination, arrest, and 
prosecution. 

Restraining Orders: Empi<J)'��s.who are seeking or have obtained restraining orders or 
injunctions against abusive persons should notify their Department Head/Supervisor so that 
appropriate measures can be taken. When an injunction or restraining order lists place of 
employment or County facilities as being protected areas, employees must provide their 
supervisor with a copy of any injunction or restraining order which is granted, and a copy of any 
injunction or restraining order which is made permanent. 

63 

Revised 03/30/2016 

Employment Handbook 



Addendum Statement: 

Addendums for the Iowa County Highway Department and Iowa County Bloomfield Healthcare 
and Rehabilitation Center has been prepared as a supplement to the Iowa County Employment 
Handbook Manual. In the case of a direct conflict between the Employment Handbook and this 
addendum, this addendum shall control. Unless expressly specified by this addendum, all 
policies of the Iowa County Employment Handbook Manual will be the policy of the Iowa 
County Highway Department and Iowa County Bloomfield Healthcare and Rehabilitation 
Center. 

A 

Revised 03/10/2016 

Addendum Statement 



HIGHWAY DEPARTMENT ADDENDUM 

Lunch/Meal Period 

During summer hours; the lunch break is adjusted to be 20 minutes in duration and is a paid break. 

Early Snow Plow Break: Employees who get called in for snow plowing/removal and are expected to report to 
work prior to 5:00 a.m. will be allowed to take a 30 minute break. Employees are expected to complete one 
cycle through their sections prior to this meal break. Nonetheless,6�fter one cycle through the section, the 
employee may take this meal break after calling the office ove ·""0"'5hdio, unless management reasonably 
objects. 

This early snow plow break is in lieu of the fifteen (1 
determine that an additional morning break of ten 

Normal Work Hours: 

Iowa County Highway Department, normal 
through Friday. Employees shall receive their 
Bourn established. The fluctu 
incurring shift differential nav; :U' 
shall receive a shift --•-·cc.��· 

. break. Highway Management may 

establish(�d as 6:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. Monday 
r-�!-!41L>u" worked within the Normal Work 

of these timeframes, employees 
the Shift Differential policy. 

A non-exempt'H;fgp�ay Dep 
(9) Observed Holitr'" 

is required to work on a day recognized as one of the nine 
Mti<::,.rw•cl Holiday calendar for management and non-represented 

hours worked, pursuant to the Shift Differential policy. 

On Call/Call Back Pay: 

A non-exempt Highway Department employee who is required to respond to a call for assistance during hours 
other than Normal Work Hours will receive a minimum of two (2) hours of pay regardless of the amount of 
time worked in responding to that request for assistance. Additional working hours accumulated will be paid at 
the employee's rate of pay; subject to the Shift Differential policy, until.the requirement for overtime pay is 
met. 

1-1 Revised 03/10/2016 

Highway Addendum 



Shift Differential Pay: 

A non-exempt Highway Department employee, who is required to work hours other than those within the 
Normal Work Hours, will receive a shift differential rate of pay. The shift differential rate of pay shall be 
established as 1 and Y, times the normal regular rate of pay for the position held. 

Tardiness: 

Arriving on the job at the time you are scheduled to work is both � courtesy and an obligation owed to the 
County, co-workers and the public we service. Iowa County High. ' epartment expects that all employees 
will arrive to work on time. All tardiness will be considered ed. Employees are expected to notify 
managers immediately of their tardiness. 

Iowa County Highway Department employees who viotafoc'this policy ,be subject to disciplinary action 
including up to te1mination. 

In events that are unforeseen, Iowa County Highway M 

Tool Requirement: 

Iowa County pn)�i.t!�:�fjt���!-�1�e 
property. 

1-2 

responsible for a set of personal 

· asters, such as a fire, that occur on Iowa County 

Revised 03/10/2016 

Highway Addendum 



BLOOMFIELD HEALTHCARE AND REHABILITION CENTER ADDENDUM 

Appearance and Demeanor 

Employees will follow 1he Appearance and Demeanor policy listed in 1he Iowa County Employment Handbook 
unless listed differently below. 

Nursing Department (Nurses, Nursing Assistants, Health Unit Coordinator) 
Employees are required to wear scrnb uniforms with low-heeled, closei;Uoed and slip resistant shoes. 
Stockings, tights or socks are encouraged, however not mandatory . .E;fujlfoyee may wear blue jeans on Fridays. 

<'< ,  
Food Service ,,,,,,, . •. 

Employees are required to wear low-heeled, closed toed and slitf"tesista�fs)10es. Stockings, tights or socks are 
encouraged, however not mandatory. Food Service emp · · s shall wear'h�\t,restraints such as hair coverings 
or nets, hats, beard restraints and clothing that cover ' � .. . 

--<�t:��_Z::_ 
Laundry/Housekeeping 
Employees are required to wear low-heeled,qlosed toes an 
encouraged, however not mandatory. 

s;ci��fogs, tights or socks are 

Environmental Services 
Employee shall wear a blue unifonn, Employeis are al.Jfg:;tOtwear t-s ;"eatshirts and are required to wear 
tennis shoes or work boots. .,  

Direct Contact Employees 
Employees shall not wear dai1gtt!j.g 
length or longer m1c!st .lJt: sgcured 
are to be kept cle<1rr, �m66tli <Wd no 
fingernails or ,extt:nclers. Sho�fcl !lrtificl 
resident contact: · · 

"" " 

Attendance and Abs���e' 

welry/s�iJi.�S::pf any kind. Employees whose hair is shoulder 
and S�cJ.!red with a clip, in a braid, or ponytail. Fingernails 

. ,, ,]ong:,_,Employees are discouraged from wearing artificial 
cpails/exten"cier��e·worn, the employee must wear gloves with all 
"'"'--C"<-i.' - """-'7 

Bloomfield Healthcare em�r&��.€::�. wil,li��ere to the Iowa County Employment handbook for this section. 

-----;-;-;"'""""
"-"'- -In addition to 1he Iowa County EAfmdyment handbook, Iowa County Bloomfield Healthcare employees 

scheduled to work either day of the weekend (Saturday/Sunday) and are absent will be required to work the 
following weekend. 

Change in Status 

Employees who request to change to a different full-time equivalent classification or shift are required to fill out 
a Voluntary Change in Status Form. 

2-1 Revised 03/10/2016 

Bloomfield Addendum 



Employees who are lookillg to decrease full-time equivalent classification need to be in current position for at 
least six ( 6) months. 

Communicable Diseases/Infection Control 

A prerequisite of employment is a tuberculin skill test performed at Bloomfield Healthcare. 

Please refer to the Iowa County Bloomfield Healthcare policies and procedures on Communicable Diseases and 
Infection Control. 

Employee Classification 

In addition to the Iowa County Employment Handbook, }jlci�fufield HealtH��e has two different classifications 
of Casual Status employees: 

. . 
• .. 

Regular Casual Status: Employee must work a minimum bl!;two sbift.s;per month, ._ ;ne being a weekend 
shift. Employees are not eligible for any I ounty ben�fit�i!}�!�dlng, but not 1�1�aJto, Wisconsin 
Retirement System, Health Insurance, Dent Vision il'l�\:irance, Disability and Flex Spending. 
Employees are not eligible for any other such as:OY.ertime, Holiday pay, shift differentials 
or MTO. -

'<£:�:-:>-- _;, 

School Casual Status: Employee�'linist \>;'cn:k a aunually on a calendar basis. To 
be eligible, employees must beattending0:1lfiiinstitutio education and must provide proof, 
each semester, demonstrating e1m;:>Jlµient i�i;;ful.d attenda .;;�:,ilt an institution of post-secondary education located 
fifty (50) or fron:J°Bfoc)Q:\Jit\'fd-l'lealthcari\tt�ither commuting or residing on campus). 

Employee Parkliig�\:-
Employees shall park ;::: 

- --- ------ " " -- -- --- c;c;;;;·•· -- -'--: -:-":;ij;_·:-- - "0:J:(.f} 

\g- -0. 
required d��!gnated Employee Parking area. 

'"' --:,:;:.'C;;: "�'-"'01 
Designated Parkillg areas: Eil\.Bl\t)'ee§ · �Il park either on the South side of Bloomfield Healthcare across the 
fence and/or on the east side o{E\f'·· .  eld Healthcare. 

Employees working the Night shift may park in the visitor's parkillg lot. 

Exchan!!in!! Days Off 

Employees may exchange days/shifts with other employees if approved by an immediate supervisor. 
Employees are required to fill out a "Shift Change" form. If the exchange is approved, employees are 
responsible for working exchanged shifts. Failure to report to exchanged shift, may result in disciplinary action. 

2-2 Revised 03/30/2016 

Bloomfield Addendum 



Hours of Work 

Bloomfield Healthcare serves the community twenty-four hours a day, seven days a week, so it is expected that 
employees may have to work on Saturdays, Sundays, holidays and on different shifts and in different areas. 

Night Shift: Employees are not allowed to leave the premises during their working hours. Employees shall be 
provided with a working meal break. 

In-Service Training Programs and Meetings 

All departments are encouraged to provide in-service training§ lpyees the opp01tunity to improve 
skills and knowledge. Some in-service trainings and mt;�fliigs will be Ma ��tpry. If Mandatory, all staff, full 
time, part-time and Casual Regular Status employees,;f!l"�J'equired to attend tfi�/c eting/in-service. All 
meetings will be scheduled and posted at least seven (1)-'days in advance. shall have the authority to 
excuse an employee from a mandatory staff meeting. </;�;-_ •• ], 
Casual School Status Employees: Bloomfielq ij�altl:icare Man<fg� ·n provide via email a notice of the in
service or training. School Status employees'-$E_a,lf a�eru.i as many

·�i!)le mandatory trainings or meetings as 
possible. If unable to attend the mandatory trairlI�g, I\iliffeI§'M"1-�s will'l5'd!r"1sponsible to complete all in-services 
or trainings prior to working t · cheduled'shl_ft. Th� .[�irfrii;xil trafrit�g needed before the employees' 
scheduled shift is at the dissr .• , c  . -�gement. ' fs'slioul�'!:>x,read prior to working on the floor. 

�" 
-,�o--_->" 

Learning Modules: All learnirl'g·'ffi-Qpules iir�P to be c� .P,Jeted prior to the target date. Employees are able to 
complete the learning;JJ1Q.cl!lles at'li�fu . l�lwana er app[�y_al. Iflearning modules are completed at home, 
employees are r�§p�rl�ibh.:. (or'fillingb . �times l-'-£"1p{i�li form. 

"' -" 

�--c;_''>
" 

---- -- -z <lfC�i:: 
Failure to attelld m;:;>ervice trainmg�tor ma ry meetillgs may result in disciplinary action. 

--�-�::;c_:: 
-�'-"::C" "" 

Licensing and Certific;fihil\�equire��rlts -
All employees who are requir�dl�)"!� '�jther licensed or certified for their position must keep such license and/or 
certification up to date, a copy shailbe provided to the Employee Relations Department. 

Lockers 

Lockers are available to all employees. To request a locker, please see the Laundry/Housekeeping Supervisor. 
Iowa County will not be responsible for lost aiiicles. Provided lockers remain the property of Iowa County and 
may be searched. Employees shall not have an expectation of privacy in County provided lockers. 

2-3 Revised 03/30/2016 

B loomfield Addendum 



Purchase of Meals/Buying Food 

Employees may purchase meals from Bloomfield Healthcare for lunch and/or supper. 

Employees need to purchase a ticket from the Business Office and must sign up with Dietary before 10:30 a.m. 
for lunch and 3 :30 p.m. for supper. 

Employees who are working a double shift will receive a complimentary meal. 

It is strictly prohibited for any person including employees to remove food or food scraps from the facility, 
without the written approval of the Administrator. The purchasing from vendors, Bloomfield, or the 
borrowing of food from Bloomfield is prohibited. 

It is strictly prohibited for employees to remove or take srn1c�:s,•1?�/ 
personal use from residents. 

Release of Information 

All information concerning a resident's me:ctlc)<1\c011drt1011, 
information is confidential and may not be re.f�()>!¢{\i'f'Lth<JUt 
information is requested, refer them to the Direc�or of�.�!&�ing 

Timeclock 

or any other food item for their own 

personal 
If 

Employees oflowa County n1L1u11 
badging in and outfor;th.�if .schedul 
"Time Card Expe'ctafi�� She�tf' ill addi 

R.�h<tlJilitati[on Center are responsible for accurately 
WQ;rJprtg outside of scheduled shift shall fill out a 

indicating the hours actually worked and the 
reason. 

2-4 Revised 03/30/2016 

Bloomfield Addendum 



Employee Handbook Acknowledgement Form 

I have received my copy of the Employee Handbook. 

The employee handbook describes important information about Iowa County, and I understand 
that I should contact my manager or Employee Relations regarding any questions not answered 
in the handbook or clarification. 

I understand that Iowa County is an "at-will" employer, me 
free to end the employment relationship at any time, wi 
cause as long as there is no violation of applicable fed 

This handbook supersedes and replaces all previo��personnel po 
that are addressed in this Handbook. ·�·: �··· 

t either I or Iowa County are 

I acknowledge that this handbook is neither a cotrtf.:i'Ri of emplgyment nor I 
understand that it is my responsibilit. · read and ccl'filpl ,ed in this 
handbook and any revisions made t 

I understand that Iowa County has the handbook with or without 
notice. 

Date 


